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Descendants of John Pelly

1-John Pelly was born on 9 Jun 1711 and died on 22 Nov 1762 at age 51.
John married Elizabeth Hinde, daughter of Henry Hinde. Elizabeth was born in 1717 and died on 6 Nov 1761 at age 44. They had two children: Henry Hinde and John.

2-Capt. Henry Hinde Pelly was born on 6 Jun 1744 in West Ham, London and died on 23 Feb 1818 at age 73.
Henry married Sally Hitchen Blake,! daughter of Capt. John Blake, on 13 Jul 1776. Sally was born in 1744 and died on 15 May 1824 at age 80. They had four children: John Henry, William, Charles, and Francis.

3-Sir John Henry Pelly 1st Bt. was born on 31 Mar 1777 in West Ham, London and died on 13 Aug 1852 in Upton Manor, Plaistow, Essex at age 75.
General Notes: Sir John Henry Pelly, 1st Bt. was a Younger Brother of Trinity House in 1803. He was Deputy Governor of the Hudson Bay Company between 1812 and 1822. He was Captain of the Honourable East
India Company Service. He was a Member of Court Bank of England between 1822 and 1852. He was Governor of the Hudson Bay Company between 1822 and 1852. He held the office of Elder Brother of Trinity
House in 1823. He was Deputy Master of Trinity Master in 1834. He was created 1st Baronet Pelly, of Upton, Essex [U.K.] on 12 August 1840.
Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Director of the Bank of England in Threadneedle Street, London.
» He worked as a Governor of the Bank of England in 1841-1842 in Threadneedle Street, London.
» He worked as a Governor of the Hudson's Bay Company.
 He had a residence in Upton, Essex.
John married Emma Boulton, daughter of Henry Boulton, in 1807. Emma was born in 1786 and died in 1856 at age 70. They had 11 children: Sally Juliana, John Henry, Raymond, Emma Eugenia, Charles,
Albert, Richard Wilson, Edmund, Alfred, Octavius, and Percy Leonard.
4-Sally Juliana Pelly was born in 1808 and died in 1892 at age 84.
Sally married William Storrs Fry,23 son of Joseph Fry®456.789.10.111213 anq Elizabeth Gurney,4>6.7:89.10.11.13.14,15,16,17.181920 o 3 Oct 1832. William was born on 1 Jun 1806, died on 27 Aug 1844 at age
38, and was buried in St. Mary The Virgin. Little IlIford. They had seven children: Emma Elizabeth, William Storrs, Katherine Juliana, Georgina, John Henry Pelly, Hannah Louisa, and Emma Juliana.
Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Banker and Tea merchant of London.
e He was a Quaker until 1829.

5-Emma Elizabeth Fry was born in 1835, died on 3 Sep 1844 at age 9, and was buried in St. Mary The Virgin. Little Ilford.
5-William Storrs Fry?! was born in 1836, died on 19 Nov 1898 at age 62, and was buried in St. Mary The Virgin. Little IIford.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Of Manor House, Eastham. Essex.
William married Anna Jane Lepper, daughter of William Harper Lepper and Mary Macaulay. They had four children: William Storrs, Arthur Pelly, Raymond Fitzgibbon, and Maud Louisa.

6-William Storrs Fry was born in 1866 and died in 1930 at age 64.
William married Kath McLean. They had one son: Cyril Mclean.

7-Cyril Mclean Fry
William next married Doris Murray. They had one son: Gordon Storrs.

7-Gordon Storrs Fry

6-Arthur Pelly Fry was born about 1872 in Chigwell, Essex.
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Arthur married Elizabeth Murty.

6-Raymond Fitzgibbon Fry was born in 1880 and died in 1960 at age 80.
Raymond married Amy Nevill Banks, daughter of Edward Nevill Banks.

6-Maud Louisa Fry
Maud married Elliott McNeill in 1897. Elliott was born on 25 Jan 1870.

5-Katherine Juliana Fry was born in 1838, died on 16 Aug 1844 at age 6, and was buried in St. Mary The Virgin. Little Ilford.

5-Georgina Fry was born in 1839 and died in 1936 at age 97.

Georgina married David Alfred Doudney, son of Rev. David Alfred Doudney® and Draper. David was born in 1838 in Holloway, London and died in 1912 at age 74. They had seven children: Edith Mary,
Alfred Cecil, Raymond Pelly, Charles Edmund, Herbert William, Eirene Juliana Louise, and Kathleen Georgina.

6-Edith Mary Doudney was born in 1863 and died in 1967 at age 104.
Edith married Victor George Golmick.

6-Alfred Cecil Doudney was born on 24 Sep 1866 in Carlisle, Cumbria, was christened on 21 Oct 1866 in St. James', Carlisle, Cumbria, and died on 5 Sep 1901 in Sanford, Florida, USA at age 34.

Noted events in his life were:

* He emigrated Chetwynd, Florida, USA in Oct 1887.

» He worked as an Orange grower in Chetwynd, Florida, USA.

* He had a residence on 1 Dec 1889 in Sanford, Florida, USA.

» He worked as a President of the Sanford Ice Company in Sanford, Florida, USA.

* His obituary was published in the New York Times and the Gospel Magazine in 1901.
Alfred married Elizabeth Cobb Downing.

6-Raymond Pelly Doudney was born in 1869 and died in 1925 at age 56.
Raymond married Ada O'Dowd. Ada was born in 1880. They had one son: Herbert Victor Atherton.

7-Herbert Victor Atherton Doudney.
Herbert married Cicely Marion Butler on 15 Dec 1947. Cicely was born on 3 Feb 1899.

6-Capt. Rev. Charles Edmund Doudney?? was born in 1871, was christened on 19 Apr 1871 in St. James', Carlisle, Cumbria, died on 16 Oct 1915 in Flanders, Belgium. Killed in action at age 44, and was
buried in Lijssenthoek Military Cemetery, Belgium.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Military Chaplain.

Charles married Joanna Clara Schroeder Poulden,?? daughter of Capt. Edward Poulden RN?? and Katharine Gawler, on 16 Jun 1899 in Portman Square, London. Joanna was born in 1876 and died in
1958 at age 82. Another name for Joanna was Zoé. They had four children: Esther Eirene, Noelle Mary, Joy, and Desiree Gawler.

7-Esther Eirene Doudney was born in 1900.

7-Noelle Mary Doudney was born in 1904 and died in 1907 at age 3.
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7-Joy Doudney was born in 1908.

7-Desiree Gawler Doudney was born on 5 Nov 1913 and died in 2003 at age 90.
Desiree married Peter Barnard Warcup in 1946. Peter was born on 18 Oct 1913 and died in 1996 at age 83. They had three children: Joanna Mary, Peter Robert, and Charles John.

8-Joanna Mary Warcup
Joanna married Andrew Venn Mowat. They had one son: Leo.

9-Leo Mowat Chesterton
Leo married Sophie Alice Doanda Lambert, daughter of John Trevor Lambert and Judy Anne Chetwynd-Stapylton. They had two children: Matilda Daisy and Rafferty Lambert.

10-Matilda Daisy Chesterton

10-Rafferty Lambert Chesterton
Joanna next married David |. Chesterton. They had two children: Sukey and Venn.

9-Sukey Chesterton

9-Venn Chesterton
8-Peter Robert Warcup
8-Charles John Warcup

6-Herbert William Doudney was born in 1873 and died in 1963 at age 90.
Herbert married Olive Addison in 1901. Olive was born in 1882.

6-Eirene Juliana Louise Doudney was born in 1874 in Carlisle, Cumbria.

Eirene married Rt. Rev. Edward Harry Mansfield Waller on 17 Sep 1897. Edward was born on 8 Dec 1871 and died on 16 May 1942 in South Africa at age 70. They had one son: Charles Raymond.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Bishop of Madras.

7-Charles Raymond Waller was born on 19 Jun 1898 in Allahabad, Bengal, India and died on 9 Aug 1917 in Flying accident. Hounslow at age 19.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Officer in the Royal Flying Corps.

6-Kathleen Georgina Doudney was born in 1876 and died in 1937 at age 61.
Kathleen married Walter James Frogley.
Kathleen next married Harold Quihampton.

5-John Henry Pelly Fry was born in 1842 and died in 1907 at age 65.
5-Hannah Louisa Fry was born in 1843.

5-Emma Juliana Fry?® was born in 1844, died on 15 Aug 1844, and was buried in St. Mary The Virgin. Little IIford.
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4-Sir John Henry Pelly 2nd Bt. was born on 30 Mar 1809 and died on 20 Dec 1864 at age 55.

John married Johanna Jane Carstairs, daughter of John Carstairs, on 19 Dec 1840. Johanna died on 2 Feb 1856. They had four children: Henry Carstairs, Emma Cecil, Helen, and Evelyn Juliana.

5-Sir Henry Carstairs Pelly 3rd Bt. was born on 23 Apr 1844 and died on 4 Jun 1877 at age 33.

Henry married Lady Lilian Harriet Charteris, daughter of Francis Richard Charteris 10th Earl Of Wemyss and Lady Anne Frederica Anson, on 27 Nov 1872. Lilian was born on 17 Oct 1851 and died on
11 Apr 1914 at age 62. They had two children: Constance Lilian and Annie Evelyn.

6-Constance Lilian Pelly died on 8 Jan 1947.

Constance married David Alexander Lindsay 27th Earl Of Crawford, son of James Ludovic Lindsay 26th Earl of Crawford and Emily Florence Bootle-Wilbraham. David was born on 10 Oct 1871
and died on 8 Mar 1940 at age 68. They had three children: David Alexander Robert, Margaret Cynthia, and Mary Lilian.

7-David Alexander Robert Lindsay 28th Earl Of Crawford was born on 20 Nov 1900 and died on 13 Dec 1975 at age 75.

Noted events in his life were:
* He worked as a MP. Director of National Westminster Bank.

David married Mary Katherine Cavendish, daughter of Rt. Hon. Lord Richard Frederick Cavendish and Moyra de Vere Beauclerk, on 9 Dec 1925. Mary was born on 20 Jul 1903 and died on 20
Nov 1994 at age 91. They had one son: Robert Alexander.

8-Robert Alexander Lindsay 29th Earl Of Crawford
Robert married Ruth Beatrice Meyer-Bechtler, daughter of Leo Meyer-Bechtler. They had one daughter: Bettina Mary.

9-Lady Bettina Mary Lindsay

Bettina married Peter Charles Drummond-Hay, son of John Waldo Edward Hay Drummond-Hay and Anne Rachel Prideaux. They had four children: Tamsin Rachel, Alice Ruth, Lily lona,
and Thomas Auriol Leo.

10-Tamsin Rachel Drummond-Hay
10-Alice Ruth Drummond-Hay
10-Lily lona Drummond-Hay
10-Thomas Auriol Leo Drummond-Hay
7-Lady Margaret Cynthia Lindsay was born on 27 Jun 1902.

7-Lady Mary Lilian Lindsay

Mary married Reginald Edward Manningham-Buller 1st Viscount Dillhorne, son of Lt. Col. Sir Mervyn Edward Manningham-Buller 3rd Bt. and Lady Lilah Constance Cavendish, on 18 Dec
1930. Reginald was born on 1 Aug 1905 and died in 1980 at age 75. They had one daughter: Marion Cynthia.

8-Hon. Marion Cynthia Manningham-Buller was born on 26 Nov 1934 and died on 10 Aug 2013 in Kettering, Northamptonshire at age 78.

General Notes: The Hon Marian Cynthia Brudenell, who died 10 August, 2013, at Kettering, Northamptonshire, was a daughter of Sir Reginald Manningham-Buller, 1st Viscount Dilhorne (Peerage of
the UK, cr 1964), Lord Chancellor in the governments of Harold Macmillan and Alec Douglas-Home, by his wife the former Lady Mary Lilian Lindsay, daughter of the 27th Earl of Crawford &
Balcarres, KT. She was born 26 Nov, 1934, and married 8 Nov, 1955, Edmund Crispin Stephen James George Brudenell (b 24 Oct 1928), scion of the Marquesses of Ailesbury (Marquess, UK, cr
1821), by whom she had 2 sons, Robert and Thomas, and one daughter, Anna. Funeral at St Peter's Church, Deene, Northants on Thursday August 29th 2013. There will be no Memorial Service.
Marian Brudenell, who has died aged 78, devoted her married life to the restoration and preservation of Deene Park, in Northamptonshire, the estate which has been in her husband's family since 1514;
in the 1970s she discovered in the family archives a forgotten, rare and highly valuable copy of the Magna Carta.

Deene was occupied by the Earls of Cardigan (the title was conferred on Thomas Brudenell by Charles 11 in 1661) until the death of the 7th Earl in 1868, when it passed to his widow, Adeline, who
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lived there until she died in 1915. The earldom was inherited by the Marquess of Ailesbury, while the house and estate eventually passed to George Brudenell, the father of Marian's husband Edmund.
Marian married Edmund in 1955, and by the time she came to live at Deene (initially the young married couple lived with his parents) the house was in a parlous state. It had been occupied by six
different units during the Second World War, some of whom had used the birds depicted on the Chinese wallpaper of one of the bedrooms for target practice with their rifles.

In the guide book to the house Marian Brudenell wrote: "By 1945, the already dilapidated house was virtually derelict, the roof leaked, there was dry rot, no electricity nor heating and little plumbing — in
short, it was exceedingly uncomfortable. The kitchen was so far away that my mother-in-law used to ride there through the house on a bicycle."”

Edmund's parents were largely indifferent to their surroundings: Marian's mother-in-law devoted her time to the farm, while her father-in-law's main interests were the Library at Deene and dendrology.
Weekend guests were required to sleep in dormitories in which there were rows of single beds .

Although Edmund had made a start on renovating the house in 1948 when he was just 20, it was not until the death of his father in 1962 that he had free rein. At first the Brudenells were assisted by an
interior decorator , but in due course Marian found that she was more than capable of doing the work herself. It took 15 years.

In the 1970s she was examining the family archives in Northampton when she came across a copy, made in 1297, of the Magna Carta (1215). How it came into the family's possession is not known, but
it appears to have been at Deene Park from at least the early 1600s. Only 17 copies of the charter from the 13th century are known to survive; the Brudenells' example was the only one in private

hands, and one of only five still carrying a royal seal. Marian arranged for it to be returned to Deene, and for several years it sat on an easel in the Bow Room.

In 1983 it was sold privately to Ross Perot, the American businessman who later twice stood for the Presidency of the United States. The proceeds enabled the Brudenells to pay off borrowings
incurred in Deene's restoration. (The copy of Magna Carta was sold again in December 2007 for more than $21 million, and is on display in the National Archives in Washington, DC, alongside the
Declaration of Independence and the United States Constitution.)

In the 1860s a ballroom had been added at Deene by the 7th Earl of Cardigan (leader of the Charge of the Light Brigade in 1854). This was a Gothic extension which sat ill-at-ease with the rest of the
house and, amid much controversy, Edmund and Marian Brudenell succeeded in 1984 in obtaining planning permission to demolish it. It has since been replaced by a conservatory.

It was not only the house which benefited from Marian Brudenell's attention. The garden, too, had been allowed to deteriorate by her parents-in-law. While Marian herself never adopted a posture other
than entirely vertical when in the garden, with the assistance and guidance of James Russell, a famous plantsman, she oversaw the replanting of the long borders, doubling their depth and filling them
with old roses, philadelphus and other shrubs.

She was born Marian Cynthia Manningham-Buller on November 26 1934, the daughter of Sir Reginald Manningham-Buller, the 1st Viscount Dilhorne and Lord Chancellor in the government of Harold
Macmillan, and his wife, Lady Mary Lindsay, a daughter of the 27th Earl of Crawford and Balcarres. Marian, whose younger sister, Eliza , would become Director-General of MI5, was educated at
various schools, including Cheltenham Ladies College.

Marian Brudenell was always elegant without being ostentatious (although she did enjoy her jewels). She wore her thick black hair in a loose chignon, and was quietly proud of her shapely legs. She was
well-read, intelligent, inquisitive, full of energy, and outspoken in her beliefs and opinions. Her voice was distinctively Edwardian.

As a hostess, her hospitality was lavish; guests at Deene were met by two butlers ; there were separate bedrooms and dressing rooms for every couple; black tie was worn at dinner, and in the morning
ladies were brought breakfast on a tray in their bedrooms. The Brudenells entertained princes and landowners; ambassadors and politicians; lonely widows; scholars, art historians, writers and
bibliophiles.

Marian Brudenell had no idea how to cook, but she ensured that there was delicious food at her weekend house parties. Over the years she employed a multitude of staff, some of whom remained at
Deene for many years and whose portraits (painted by Edmund's cousin, Richard Foster) hang in the Octagon Room at Deene.

Punctually on Sunday mornings, there were services — according to the 1662 Prayer Book — in the small chapel at Deene.

Marian Brudenell is survived by her husband, and by their twin sons and one daughter.

Marian Brudenell, born November 26 1934, died August 10 2013

Noted events in her life were:

* Her obituary was published in The Daily Telegraph on 6 Sep 2013.

Marion married Edmund Crispin Stephen James George Brudenell, son of George Lionel Thomas Brudenell and Mary Julia Schilizzi, on 8 Nov 1955. Edmund was born on 24 Oct 1928 and died
on 19 Oct 2014 in Kettering, Northamptonshire at age 85. They had three children: Robert Edmund, Thomas Mervyn, and Anna Maria.

Marriage Notes: They used to stay with me, (CEGPease), at the Kinloch Hotel on the Isle of Mull, as guests of Michael Albermarle "Alby" Bowes-Lyon. Their daughter, Anna Maria stayed on several
occasions too. For a fuller record, see Alby in this database.....

Noted events in his life were:

* His obituary was published in The Daily Telegraph on 14 Nov 2014.

9-Robert Edmund Brudenell

9-Thomas Mervyn Brudenell

Thomas married Venetia Jane Chaworth-Musters, daughter of Robert Patricius Chaworth-Musters and Diana Margaret Clayton, in 1984. Venetia was born on 6 Jun 1954 and died in 1993 at
age 39. They had two children: Sophia Lucy and Victoria.
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10-Sophia Lucy Brudenell
10-Victoria Brudenell
9-Dr. Anna Maria Brudenell
6-Annie Evelyn Pelly died on 11 Jul 1923.

Noted events in her life were:
» She worked as a Lady in waiting to Duchess of Connaught.
Annie married Thomas Henry Rivers Bulkeley, son of Col. Charles Rivers Bulkeley.

5-Emma Cecil Pelly died on 20 Jul 1885.

Emma married Walter Douglas Dumbleton, son of Henry Dumbleton and Ellen Norris, on 5 Apr 1866 in St. Albans, Hertfordshire. Walter was born in 1836 and was christened on 10 Apr 1836 in Yateley,
Hampshire. They had one daughter: Cecil Blanche.

6-Cecil Blanche Dumbleton died on 7 Jan 1948.
Cecil married Sir Arthur Edwin Sutton 7th Bt. on 11 Sep 1885. Arthur was born on 24 Sep 1857 and died on 4 Feb 1948 at age 90. They had two children: Esmé and Robert Lexington.

7-Esmé Sutton was born in 1886.
7-Sir Robert Lexington Sutton 8th Bt. was born on 18 Jan 1897 and died in 1981 at age 84.
5-Helen Pelly died on 3 Oct 1856.

5-Evelyn Juliana Pelly died on 13 Jun 1934.
Evelyn married James Henry.
John next married Blanche Elizabeth Vincent on 13 Nov 1860. Blanche died on 16 Feb 1925. They had one son: Harold.

5-Sir Harold Pelly 4th Bt. was born on 28 Feb 1863 and died on 3 Nov 1950 at age 87.
Harold married Anna Maria Poore, daughter of Maj. Robert Poore and Juliana Benita Lowry-Corry, on 5 Mar 1889. Anna died on 12 Dec 1939. They had one son: Philip Vincent.

6-Philip Vincent Pelly was born on 20 Sep 1898 and died in 1991 at age 93.
Philip married Pamela Mary Des Voeux on 19 Mar 1932. Pamela died on 24 Jan 1970. They had one son: Antony Roger.

7-Antony Roger Pelly
Antony married Susan Fiona Milbank, daughter of Maj. Denis William Powlett Milbank and Doreen Frances Butler.

4-Raymond Pelly was born on 28 Apr 1810 and died on 21 Jun 1886 at age 76.

Raymond married Louisa Fry,? daughter of Joseph Fry34567.8910111213 anq Elizabeth Gurney,3456789101113141516,18,19.2425 ony 10 Jun 1835. Louisa was born in 1814 and died in 1896 at age 82. They
had two children: Raymond Percy and Charles Raymond.

5-Rev. Canon Raymond Percy Pelly was born on 18 Mar 1841 and died on 16 Oct 1911 at age 70.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Vicar of Great Malvern.
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Raymond married Alice Schaffalitzky Larkins, daughter of Col. George Larkins, on 4 Feb 1864. Alice died on 6 Sep 1928. They had one son: Douglas Raymond.

6-Rev. Douglas Raymond Pelly was born on 20 Feb 1865 and died on 14 Mar 1943 at age 78.
Douglas married Verena Noellie Herbert, daughter of Rev. George W. Herbert, on 14 May 1898. Verena died on 6 Oct 1952. They had one son: Claude Bernard Raymond.

7-Air Chief Marshal Sir Claude Bernard Raymond Pelly was born on 19 Aug 1902 and died on 12 Aug 1972 at age 69.
Claude married Margaret Ogilvie Spencer on 15 Feb 1930. Margaret died in 1990. They had four children: Jane Elizabeth, John Douglas Raymond, Raymond Blake, and David Claude Raymond.

8-Jane Elizabeth Pelly
8-John Douglas Raymond Pelly was born on 22 Jan 1934 and died on 29 Jun 1937 at age 3.

8-Raymond Blake Pelly

Raymond married Joanna Bickmore Clark, daughter of John Anthony Clark?®?” and Eileen Mary Cousins,.?® They had four children: Gail, Monica, Catherine Hilda, and Aidan John Raymond.
9-Gail Pelly was born on 26 Feb 1965 and died on 4 Jun 1965.
9-Monica Pelly
9-Catherine Hilda Pelly was born on 29 Sep 1967 and died in 1984 in Dartington, Devon at age 17.

9-Aidan John Raymond Pelly
Raymond next married Barbara Helen Craig. They had one son: Thomas Douglas Raymond Craig.

9-Thomas Douglas Raymond Craig Pelly
8-David Claude Raymond Pelly
5-Charles Raymond Pelly was born on 19 Feb 1837 and died on 12 Jun 1879 at age 42.

4-Emma Eugenia Pelly?® was born on 24 Jun 1811 and died on 1 May 1893 in Buckhurst Hill, Essex at age 81.

Emma married Robert Foster Reynolds,?2° son of Jacob Foster Reynolds*?®2° and Anna Barclay,*?%° on 1 May 1833. Robert was born on 17 Aug 1800 in Carshalton, Surrey and died on 7 Apr 1846 in Upton,
West Ham, Essex at age 45. They had five children: Emma Louisa, Anna Maria, Robert Barclay, Charles Henry, and Juliana.

Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in Upton, Essex.

5-Emma Louisa Reynolds?® was born in 1836 in Upton, Essex and died in 1910 in West Ham, London at age 74.

5-Anna Maria Reynolds®=2° was born in 1837 in Upton, Essex and died in 1916 at age 79.

Anna married Capt. William Daniel Chapman,?®3° son of William Chapman®® and Jane Chapman,® on 5 Mar 1865 in Essex. (2 March also given). William was born on 17 Jan 1826 and died on 10 Nov
1911 at age 85. They had four children: Percy Hugh, Aubrey Bertram, William Daniel, and Hubert.

6-Rev. Canon Percy Hugh Chapman®® was born on 13 Apr 1866 in Wanstead, Essex and died in 1953 at age 87.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at The Grammar School in Felsted, Essex.
Percy married Katharine Margaret Knox. They had three children: Winifred Margaret, Janet Marion, and Kenneth Hugh.
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7-Winifred Margaret Chapman was born on 28 Jan 1900 in Bareilly, Bengal, India and was christened on 14 Feb 1900 in Bareilly, Bengal, India.

7-Janet Marion Chapman

Janet married Capt. Alex Colin Chapman RN, son of Rev. Theodore Charles Chapman® and Eliza Alice Barr Keith, in 1929 in Upton on Severn, Worcestershire. Alex was born on 15 Sep 1897 in
Barton Regis, Bristol, Gloucestershire and died on 14 Sep 1970 in Ravelston, The Marina, Deal, Kent at age 72.

General Notes: 09.1910 entered RN

(08.1923)  no appointment listed

27.09.1923-(01.1925) qualifying for gunnery duties, HMS Excellent (gunnery school, Portsmouth)
07.07.1926-(07.1927)  Gunnery Officer, HMS Adventure

28.06.1929-(08.1929) RN Barracks, Portsmouth [HMS Victory]

21.12.1929-(04.1930) HMS Excellent (gunnery school, Portsmouth)

25.10.1930-(02.1931)  Gunnery Officer, HMS Revenge (battleship) (Mediterranean)

12.01.1932-(09.1932)  staff course, RN Staff College, Greenwich [HMS President]

22.12.1933-(02.1936)  Squadron Gunnery Officer, 1st Battle Squadron [HMS Revenge (battleship), later (1936) HMS Valiant (battleship)] (Mediterranean)
17.11.1936-(07.1937) Commanding Officer, HMS Fleetwood (escort vessel) (Home Fleet)
22.02.1938-(04.1940)  Executive Officer, HMS Barham (battleship)

24.07.1940-(02.)1941  Staff Officer (Plans) to Commander-in-Chief Home Fleet [HMS Nelson (battleship)]
14.05.1941-(02.1943) Commanding Officer, HMS Arethusa (cruiser)

10.06.1943-(06.)1944  Captain of the Fleet, Home Fleet [HMS Duke of York (battleship)]
27.07.1944-31.07.1946 Director of Gunnery and Anti-Aircraft Warfare Division, Admiralty [HMS President]
12.04.1948-(07.1948) Head of Naval Branch Combined Services Division, Berlin [HMS Royal Albert]
08.01.1949-08.07.1949 Naval ADC to the King

Noted events in his life were:

* He was awarded with CBE.

» He was educated at Clifton College.

» He was educated at Osborne.

* He was educated at Dartmouth.

» He worked as a Captain of the Fleet, Home Fleet.

» He worked as a Director of Gunnery and Anti-Aircraft Warfare Division, Admiralty.
» He worked as a Head of Naval Branch Combined Services Division, Berlin.

» He worked as a Naval ADC to the King.

7-Kenneth Hugh Chapman was born on 22 Oct 1909 in Bareilly, Bengal, India and was christened on 20 Nov 1909 in Bareilly, Bengal, India.
6-Aubrey Bertram Chapman® was born on 31 Aug 1869 in Wanstead, Essex and died in 1916 in Kendal, Cumbria at age 47.

Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in 1911 in Lipwood, Windermere, Cumbria.

6-William Daniel Chapman®® was born on 27 Mar 1871 and died in 1871 in Kensington, London.
6-Hubert Chapman®® was born on 28 Jul 1872 and died on 13 Sep 1872.

5-Robert Barclay Reynolds? was born on 5 Oct 1838 in Upton, Essex and died in 1910 in Worthing, Sussex at age 72.
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Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in Woodford, Essex.
» He worked as a Director of the London & Lancashire Life Assurance Co. In Cornhill, London.

Robert married Evelyn Sarah Jane Davidson,?® daughter of Capt. John Davidson, on 14 Sep 1865. Evelyn was born on 6 Mar 1847 in Ifield, Crawley, Sussex and died on 8 May 1930 at age 83. They had eight
children: Evelyn Eugenia, Robert Alan Barclay, Alexander Harold, Ida Gertrude, Blanche Mabel, Hilda Louise, Clement Barclay, and Duncan Barclay.

6-Evelyn Eugenia Reynolds?® was born on 15 Sep 1866 in Woodford, Essex and died on 2 Jan 1965 in Bail Brook House, Batheaston, Somerset at age 98. She had no known marriage and no known children.

Noted events in her life were:

 She had a residence in 1901 in Egham, Surrey.

* She had a residence in Ellesborough, Soberton, Hampshire.

* She had a residence in Bail Brook House, Batheaston, Somerset.

6-Robert Alan Barclay Reynolds was born on 23 Oct 1867 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1956 in Bournemouth, Dorset at age 89.

Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in Calcutta, West Bengal, India.
Robert married Isabel Beatrice Carlow Fetherstonhaugh, daughter of William Francis Fetherstonhaugh and Sarah Butt.

6-Alexander Harold Reynolds was born on 4 Feb 1869 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1871 in Eastbourne, East Sussex at age 2.

6-1da Gertrude Reynolds?® was born on 3 Jun 1870 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1957 in Oxford, Oxfordshire at age 87.

Ida married Christopher Ritchie, son of Henry Scott Ritchie and Ann Elizabeth Burtt, on 21 Jun 1899 in Englefield Green, Egham, Surrey. Christopher was born on 30 Oct 1870 in Clapham, London and
died in 1936 in Oxford, Oxfordshire at age 66. They had two children: Evelyn Dorothy and Brenda Augusta.

Noted events in their marriage were:
» They had a residence in 1901 in Abbots Langley, Hertfordshire.

7-Evelyn Dorothy Ritchie?® was born on 24 Mar 1900 in Abbots Langley, Hertfordshire, was christened on 5 May 1900 in Abbots Langley, Hertfordshire, and died in 1984 in Cheltenham, Gloucestershire
at age 84.

General Notes: Mrs Evelyn Dorothy Carr 1900-1984

Evelyn Ritchie, with her sister Brenda, was already an experienced rock climber with several seasons in the Lake District when, a classics student at St Hilda's Hall, she met her future husband, Herbert
Carr whom she married in 1927, at an OUMC lecture. In 1925 he introduced her to the Alps and from then until the outbreak of war she climbed in the Alps every season achieving an impressive record
of first class climbs, many ofwhich she led, in addition to her climbs in Wales, the Lakes, Scotland and Skye. She resumed alpine climbing after the war but injuries sustained from a rock fall while she
was leading near the top of the Trifthorn limited her later alpine visits to moderate glacier excursions. Sadly, the last few years of her life were under the shadow of a progressively disabling illness. We
extend our sympathy to Herbert Carr and

his daughter.

Frank Solari. The Alpine Journal 1986

Evelyn Carr Tom Peacocke writes:

I did not know Evelyn Carr well, but met her in La Berarde in 1934 when she was with Herbert, Geoffrey Barrett, Miss Barrett and Brenda Ritchie, and | was with George Meade-King, David
Hodgkinson and Tom Reed. We were all on the traverse of the Meije together. A violent thunderstorm the night before iced up the Grande Muraille and put fresh snow on the upper parts of the mountain.
A guided party in the hut wisely said no, but it was our last two days and it was now or never. We were much delayed by the conditions and were out 20% hours. The three girls went first, led by Brenda.
Our descent into the Breche Zsigmondy almost resulted in a tragedy. We were roping down owing to the conditions and the girls had reached the Breche when a rock, the size of a door, was loosened
near the summit by one member of our party. | was 'sheet anchor' on the top and had a full view of everything. My heart stood still as | saw this rock pursuing its mad career straight for the three girls. It
could not have been falling for more than five seconds, but to me it was an eternity. | had time to ponder the possible consequences. It seemed that it must hit them. I thought 'If they are not killed how
can we get an injured climber down from the Breche?' At that time no one had ever ascended or descended either side. And then a miracle happened. The rock hit another even larger rock and burst into
fragments passing harmlessly over their heads! After this the rest of the expedition was comparatively uneventful. We climbed out of the Bteche up an icy chimney, traversed the arete and abseiled down
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a 60m ice-slope on the eastern side of the Pic Centrale by the light of a full moon, reaching the Refuge d'Aigle at lam.
The Alpine Journal 1987

Noted events in her life were:

» She was educated at St. Hilda's Hall, Oxford.

» She worked as a Mountaineer and Rock Climber.
» She worked as a member of The Alpine Club.

Evelyn married Herbert Reginald Culling Carr,?%3! son of Reginald Childers Culling Carr3! and Enid Agnes Kenney-Herbert,3 on 28 Jul 1927 in Great Berkhamsted, Hertfordshire.
Herbert was born on 16 Jul 1896 in Madras, India, was christened on 17 Aug 1896 in Madras Cathedral, Madras, India, and died on 23 Apr 1986 in Cheltenham, Gloucestershire at age 89. They had one
daughter: Eirene B. M. P..

General Notes: Herbert Reginald Culling Carr 1896-1986

| was surprised early last year to receive a message from Herbert Carr saying he wished to see me. We had never met before, although over the years | had received a number of letters from him: some

of the early ones, to be honest, quite peppery. All that was long forgotten, and | wasted no time in making the trip to Cheltenham to visit him. He was approaching 90, and | knew from David Cox that he
had already looked frighteningly old and frail the year before, when he had been guest of honour at the Helyg Diamond Jubilee celebrations in N Wales. Nevertheless, he had delivered a spirited speech
and enjoyed himself so much that he made the long journey north again a month later so that he could spend his birthday at Pen-y-Gwryd. Herbert was propped up in a chair when | arrived, several books
and papers on a nearby table. The midday sun was streaming into the room and his lunch, he said, would be brought in at any minute. Had | remembered to bring some sandwiches? | had? Good. We
shared a bottle of wine as we talked. Conversation was obviously a strain; sentences would hang half-finished in the air while he regrouped his thoughts, and he wasted no time getting to the point. 'l want
you', he said, 'to write my obituary for the Alpine Journal'. True, | had been very curious to know why he had summoned me, but somehow this reason had not occurred to me. | protested. There were
others, I said, who knew him and his climbing career far better than I. He waved a transparent hand. ‘No matter’, he said, 'I'll send you what notes you need.' So that was decided. We talked a little more
over coffee; then it was time for his nap and | was shown out. It was the only time | saw him. Over the following weeks, there were a number of telephone calls and a few short notes arrived for the
Carr-box he had instructed me to buy, plus an -invitation to attend his 90th birthday party in July, when, to satisfy an old man's vanity, would I mind writing a brief report for the local newspaper? Sadly, it
was not to be. On 23 April, Herbert Carr died. What, then, to do? I had been right first time: from a bald list of facts and dates, there was no way | could contrive a reasoned assessment of Carr the
mountaineer, even though his name had been familiar to me for as long as | had been interested in climbing. One of the first books | discovered in my early days of enthusiasm, when each week I
rapaciously scoured the library for climbing books, was The Mountains of Snowdonia, which he had written with G A Lister in 1924. It was not long, either, before | heard the story of his accident in Cwm
Glas in 1925 when his companion Stanley Van Noorden was killed. Herbert was severely injured, but, with no one to raise the alarm, he lay for two days and two nights out in the-open before being
discovered, quite by chance, by a local shepherd. Almost 40 years later, when | began coming to Wales, Herbert's ordeal was still one of the legendary horror stories, frequently retailed. Later, I learned of
the leading part he had played ip. rebuilding the Oxford University Mountaineering Club after the First World War; and how, by virtue of his success, he was promptly co-opted into the Climbers' Club to
perform a similar miracle there. One of his first acts was to discover a near-derelict cottage, Helyg, and to persuade his fellow members of its potential. It became the first club hut in Wales. Raymond
Greene told of alpine adventures with Herbert; Herbert himself related how he helped put together the first Oxford University arctic expedition-to Spitsbergen in 1922-but how he relin- quished his own
place on it to Noel Odell, in order to accompany his father to the Alps. What became obvious, the more I learned, was that, whatever his climbing achievements, Herbert's greatest gift to the mountain
world was as a social fixer'. He could come up with bright ideas and see them through to success on the streng.th of his talent for creating an atmosphere of comradeship and enthusiasm. He enjoyed
organizing and was genero~s with his time and affections. His devotion to his family, too, was unstirited: he shared several alpine seasons with his father, who had taken up climbing in his retirement, and
together they were elected to the Alpine Club in 1922. Herbert told of an epic traverse of the Matterhorn he and his father had made with the young Chamonix guide, Alfred Couttet, in 1924. Surprised by
storm, he feared for his father's safety. The old man was utterly exhausted when finally shepherded into the Solvay Hut. It was on one of the alpine meets he organised for the CC that Herbert met his
future wife-Evelyn. They, too, shared many climbs together in a 58-year marriage. Herbert's energy-persisted into old age. When he was 82 he set about editing the diaries of Andrew Irvine, who had died
with Mallory on Everest in 1924 (see the review in AJ 85, 249, 1980). But in 1984 Evelyn Carr died, and Herbert sank into ill-health and depress- ion. It was then, fortuitously, that he received the
invitation to take part in the Helyg celebrations. With a renewal of his characteristic vigour, he plunged into preparations and came up with the idea that a book be published to commemo- rate the
occasion. After Herbert's death, his daughter confirmed that this last renewing of links with the climbing world, and all the many projects and enthusiasms it engendered, contributed enormously to the
happiness of his last two years. Besides reviving old friendships, he had been able to make new friends among younger climbers, and he was inspired, largely by their interest, to start on an
autobiographical work The Halcyon Days. It covered his early climbing years, up to the time of the Cwm Glas accident, after which, he said, his beloved mountains never seemed quite so halcyon again.
Audrey Salkeld. The Alpine Journal 1987

Noted events in his life were:

» He was educated at St. Paul's School.

» He was educated at Pembroke College, Oxford.

» He worked as a Sub-Lieut. RNVR in 1915-1919.

» He worked as an Assistant Master, Alleyn's School in 1927-1931 in Dulwich, London.
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» He worked as a Headmaster, Penrith Grammar School in 1931-1934 in Penrith, Cumbria.

» He worked as a Headmaster, Harrogate Grammar School in 1934-1960 in Harrogate, Yorkshire.
» He worked as a Flight Lieut., RAFVR in 1940-1944,

» He worked as a Mountaineer and Rock Climber.

* He worked as a member of The Alpine Club.

8-Eirene B. M. P. Carr
7-Brenda Augusta Ritchie was born on 20 Jul 1905 in St. Albans, Hertfordshire and died in Jun 1987 in Cirencester, Gloucestershire at age 81.

Noted events in her life were:
» She worked as a Rock Climber and Mountaineer.

6-Blanche Mabel Reynolds?® was born on 1 Feb 1872 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1935 in Droxford, Hampshire at age 63.

6-Hilda Louise Reynolds?® was born on 13 Jul 1874 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1954 in Witney, Oxfordshire at age 80.

Hilda married Charles Henry Falcon, son of Michael Falcon and Mary, in 1904 in Exeter, Devon. Charles was born in 1870 in Briery Dale House, Stainburn, Workington, Cumbria, was christened on 27
Oct 1870 in Workington, Cumbria, died about 27 Sep 1916 in Loweswater, Cumbria about age 46, and was buried on 29 Sep 1916 in Loweswater, Cumbria. They had two children: Gordon Barclay and
Audrey Hilda.

Noted events in their marriage were:
» They had a residence in 1911 in Loweswater, Cumbria.

7-Gordon Barclay Falcon was born in 1905 in Loweswater, Cumbria and died on 17 May 1927 in Karawinna, Victoria, Australia at age 22.
7-Audrey Hilda Falcon was born on 26 Jul 1908 in Loweswater, Cumbria and died on 22 Feb 1990 in Los Angeles, California, USA at age 81.

Noted events in her life were:

» She emigrated to the United States of America.

 She was naturalized as an American citizen in 1950 in Los Angeles, California, USA.
Audrey married John Henry Barton, son of Stanley Barton and Georgina Maller.

6-Clement Barclay Reynolds?® was born on 11 Mar 1876 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1960 in Portsmouth, Hampshire at age 84.
Clement married Eleanor Rose Caldecott, daughter of Rev. William Shaw Wright Caldecott and Marion Hellier. They had two children: Evelyn Joyce and Valerie Faith.

7-Evelyn Joyce Reynolds was born on 10 Apr 1910 in Cape Town, South Africa and died on 5 Oct 1996 in Eastern Cape, South Africa at age 86.

Evelyn married Edward Samuel Hawarden. Edward was born on 21 Jan 1909 in Benoni, Transvaal, South Africa and died on 10 Oct 1973 in Johannesburg, South Africa at age 64. They had two children:
(No Given Name) and Diana E.

8-Hawarden

8-Diana E. Hawarden
Diana married John Lardner-Burke. They had one daughter: Susan Alexandra.

9-Susan Alexandra Lardner-Burke
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7-Valerie Faith Reynolds was born on 1 Jul 1914.

6-Rev. Duncan Barclay Reynolds?® was born on 18 Feb 1884 in Woodford, Essex and died in 1968 in Bath, Somerset at age 84.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Vicar of Asby in 1927-1935 in Asby, Appleby, Cumbria.
» He worked as a Perpetual Curate of Muggleswick on 13 Feb 1935 in Muggleswick, Consett, County Durham.

5-Charles Henry Reynolds?® was born on 8 Oct 1841 in Upton, Essex, died on 20 Aug 1910 in The Paddocks, Thetford, Norfolk at age 68, and was buried in Thetford, Norfolk.

Charles married Beatrice Anna Richardson,?® daughter of Sir John Richardson®? and Mary Booth, on 6 Apr 1866 in Grasmere, Cumbria. Beatrice was born on 31 May 1841 in Alverstoke, Hampshire and
died on 12 Mar 1915 in High Barnet, London at age 73. They had six children: Beatrice Margaret, Charles Percy Herbert, John Richardson, Willingham Franklin, Violet Eugenia, and Lilian Mary.

6-Beatrice Margaret Reynolds® was born on 15 May 1867 in Malabar Hill, Bombay, India and died on 22 Dec 1907 in Colombo, Sri Lanka at age 40.

Beatrice married Rev. Sidney Mainwaring Simmons* in 1897 in Thetford, Norfolk. Sidney was born on 21 Oct 1870 in Tinnevelli, India and died in 1955 in Stifford, Essex at age 85. They had three
children: Agatha Mainwaring, Reynolds Mainwaring, and John Richardson Mainwaring.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a Church Missionary Society minister in Ceylon.

7-Agatha Mainwaring Simmons®® was born on 23 Jul 1898 in Colombo, Sri Lanka and died on 24 Jul 1986 in Eastbourne, East Sussex at age 88.

Agatha married Alfred Cecil Smith! on 10 Dec 1921 in Penang, Malaya. The marriage ended in divorce in 1935. Alfred was born on 31 Aug 1893 in Hadlow Down, East Sussex and died on 27 Dec 1955
in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia at age 62. They had two children: Pamela Margaret Mainwaring and Michael Cecil Mainwaring.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a General Manager for the Straits Plantations Ltd., Rubber planters.

8-Pamela Margaret Mainwaring Smith! was born on 24 May 1923 in Batu Gajah, Perak, Malaysia, died on 3 Apr 1989 in Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk at age 65, and was buried in Walsham le Willows,
Suffolk.

Pamela married Col. John Grenville Hanson. John was born on 19 Jan 1918, died in 2002 at age 84, and was buried in Walsham le Willows, Suffolk.

8-Michael Cecil Mainwaring Smith! was born on 6 Feb 1928 in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and died on 18 May 2000 in Horam, Sussex at age 72.

Michael married Kathleen May Hynard,! daughter of Frederick Charles Hynard and Anna Emma Louise Coucher, on 5 Jan 1952 in Sevenoaks, Kent. Kathleen was born on 5 Apr 1929 in
Eynsford, Kent and died on 27 Oct 1980 in Eastbourne, East Sussex at age 51. They had three children: Helen Patricia, Jennifer Ann, and Julia.

9-Helen Patricia Smith

9-Jennifer Ann Smith

Jennifer married Michael John Vince. They had four children: Eleanin Louise, Alexander John, Catherine Richenda, and Rohesia Anne Rachel.
10-Eleanin Louise Vince
10-Alexander John Vince
10-Catherine Richenda Vince

10-Rohesia Anne Rachel Vince
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9-Julia Smith was born on 18 Mar 1962 in Havant, Hampshire and died on 21 Mar 1962 in Havant, Hampshire.

Agatha next married Oliver Francis Conoley* in 1935. Oliver was born on 22 Feb 1893 in Islington, London and died on 1 Jul 1962 in Princes Risborough at age 69. They had one daughter: (No Given
Name).

8-Conoley
7-Reynolds Mainwaring Simmons was born on 21 Oct 1900 in Colombo, Sri Lanka and died in 1952 at age 52.

7-John Richardson Mainwaring Simmons® was born on 18 Mar 1902 in 52 Ward Place, Cinnamon Gardens, Colombo, Ceylon, died on 14 Jan 1985 in St Mary's Hospital, Praed Street, London at age 82,
and was buried in Mortlake, Surrey, Cremated.

General Notes: Simmons, John Richardson Mainwaring (1902— 1985), office systems pioneer and company director, was born on 18 March 1902 at 52 Ward Place, Cinnamon Gardens, Colombo, Ceylon,
the third child of Sydney Mainwaring Simmons (1870- 1955), clerk in holy orders, and his first wife, Beatrice Margaret Reynolds (1869—- 1907). He had an elder sister, Agatha, and brother, Reynolds,
known as Rennie. His mother died on 22 December 1907; in December 1909 his father married Helene Elsie Marion Walker and they had a daughter, Margaret Theodora. His father, mother, and
stepmother were all members of the Church Missionary Society; his father was himself born in India of missionary parents. Like Sir Nevill Mott, who was his maternal first cousin, John Simmons was the
great-grandson of the Arctic explorer and naturalist Sir John Richardson, after whom he was named.

Simmons was sent home to England to a private preparatory school, entering Windlesham House in Sussex in 1910. In 1916 he obtained a scholarship to Brighton College, as had his brother previously,
where he captained the second eleven at cricket. In 1920 he went up to St John's College, Cambridge, to read mathematics, supported by a Bell scholarship. He graduated as a wrangler (first class

honours) in 1923. On graduation Simmons immediately accepted the post of statistician and management trainee at J. Lyons & Co. He remained with Lyons for forty-five years, rising to the position of
director and chief comptroller, in which post he was head of administration for the company. During that time he pioneered scientific methods of office management, and his drive for efficiency led to the
development of the first computer in the world to run a program for business rather than scientific use.

J. Lyons & Co. was best known for its chain of 250 high street teashops and its flagship London restaurants, the Lyons Corner Houses. Managing the paperwork for the hundreds of thousands of small
transactions on which the company depended required an administrative establishment of several hundred clerks. Simmons's task was to increase the efficiency of the company's office procedures. Within
a few years he had introduced to Lyons the concept of scientific management, based on the principle that there was 'one best way' of doing any task, and that offices should be designed and managed
accordingly. To find the 'one best way', Simmons established a systems research office at Lyons (later called the organization and methods department), and some of his lieutenants published books on
office management that were influential well beyond Lyons.

In 1925 Simmons became engaged to Muriel Hare (d. ¢.1992), the daughter of Herbert Sydney Hare, a jeweller from Devon; she had come to London to study Margaret Morris movement, the dance and
exercise system named after its founder. They were married by Simmons's father on 10 June 1926 at St George's, Wilton, Somerset. Simmons adored his wife, whom he nicknamed Avriel; there were no
children.

A national organization, the Office Management Association (from 1934 the Institute of Administrative Management), had been founded after the First World War. Simmons joined it in 1933, was on its
governing council a year later, and in 1938 became its chairman, a post he held until 1950. He was simultaneously its president from 1944 until 1950, and held the title of honorary vice-president until his
death. Through this organization he was in regular touch with other influential management figures such as Sir James Pitman. He was an early advocate of decimalization. Among his achievements at the
Office Management Association was the introduction of a job grading scheme for office workers based on the system he had introduced at Lyons, which in turn led to the publication from 1942 of a biennial
survey, the Clerical Salaries Analysis.

Soon after the Second World War Simmons sent two of his staff, Oliver Standingford and Raymond Thompson, on a lengthy visit to the USA to study developments in office practice. At their request, the
visit included meetings with those who had been involved in the development of ENIAC, the so-called 'electronic brain' based on almost 18,000 thermionic valves that had been developed by the US army
during the war to calculate firing tables for heavy artillery. By the time they returned, Thompson and Standingford had sketched out a realistic proposal for the development and use of an electronic
calculator for routine office work such as invoicing, payroll, and form letters. They had also discovered that Maurice Wilkes at Cambridge University was already building such a machine: EDSAC, the
electronic delay storage automatic calculator.

Simmons enthusiastically endorsed their report— he had long dreamed of mechanizing the drudgery of much clerical work. On his recommendation Lyons invested £3000 in EDSAC in return for the right
to build its own copy of the machine if it worked. EDSAC, a 3000-valve machine, ran its first programs in 1949. By that time Lyons had already recruited a team of engineers led by John Pinkerton to build
its computer, and had created a cadre of systems designers and programmers under David Caminer, then manager of systems research, to develop the first office applications. Simmons himself came up
with the name: Lyons Electronic Office, or LEO. LEO I ran its first program, known as bakery valuations, in November 1951, becoming the first electronic computer in the world to run a routine office job.
LEO subsequently took on many other jobs, including the Lyons payroll and teashops distribution. The latter, an innovative suite of programs that greatly streamlined the ordering and delivery of goods for
the teashops, began to come into use in November 1954.

By this time Lyons was also selling time on the computer to other organizations, from the Ford Motor Company to the Ministry of Defence. Simmons urged the company to spread the computer
development costs by making additional units for sale, and Leo Computers Ltd was founded in 1954. The company built eleven of its improved (but still valve-based) LEO Il models, before introducing the
highly advanced LEO I11, with transistor electronics, in 1962. But the level of investment was never sufficient to compete with American manufacturers, particularly IBM. Despite the successful sales of
around 60 LEO lllIs, Lyons sold Leo Computers Ltd to English Electric in 1964.

For Simmons the computer was always a means to an end, not an end in itself. In 1962 he published LEO and the Managers, which set out his vision of the computer as a management tool at the heart of a
business. In it he wrote:

LEO is to the thinking of a manager as a grammar book is to the words of a speaker ... The use of LEO brings a new freedom and power to managerial thinking and decision making and ... a means of
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unambiguous communication.

He had drawn up a 'master plan' for Lyons, neatly encapsulated in a flow chart that showed how information would stream between autonomous divisions and the board via the computer. But it was never
fully implemented: Simmons never succeeded in persuading board members to make full use of LEO's powers of analysis. By the time he retired from Lyons in 1968, minicomputers were becoming
available and divisional managers were acquiring their own. After retirement he wrote The Management of Change (1970).

While unfailingly courteous, Simmons was perceived by his juniors as austere and exacting, demanding precision in speech and writing and a clear sense of purpose. He dressed formally in double-breasted
suits until his retirement, after which he rather surprisingly grew a beard and favoured bow ties and velvet jackets. Throughout their marriage he and Muriel moved between addresses in west London,
finally settling in Hyde Park Gardens. Between 1965 and 1974 they also owned a flat in Ospedaletti on the Italian riviera. Simmons was not a regular churchgoer but retained a deep personal belief. He died
in St Mary's Hospital, Praed Street, London on 14 January 1985, following a stroke, and was cremated at Mortlake. His wife survived him for a further seven years. Since 1968 an annual lecture has been
given in his honour under the auspices of the Institute of Administrative Management.

GEORGINA FERRY

Sources G. Ferry, A computer called LEO: Lyons teashops and the world's first office computer (2003) - P. J. Bird, LEO: the first business computer (1994) - Register of twentieth-century Johnians, St
John's College, Cambridge, 1: 1900- 49 (2004) - H. Ward, 'Some developments in organisation and methods since 1921', Office Management, 24 (1970), 123 - m. cert. - d. cert.

Archives U. Warwick Mod. RC., MS 363

Likenesses photograph, priv. coll. [see illus.]

Wealth at death £103,363: probate, 17 May 1985, CGPLA Eng. & Wales

© Oxford University Press 2004— 14 All rights reserved

Georgina Ferry, 'Simmons, John Richardson Mainwaring (1902- 1985)', Oxford Dictionary of National Biography, Oxford University Press, Oct 2005 [http://www.oxforddnb.com/view/article/57059
Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a Statistician for J. Lyons.

» He worked as a Director and chief comptroller for J. Lyons.

John married Muriel Hare,® daughter of Herbert Sydney Hare, on 10 Jun 1926 in St George's, Wilton, Somerset. Muriel was born in 1905 and died about 1992 about age 87. They had no children.

6-Rev. Charles Percy Herbert Reynolds was born on 24 Jun 1869 in Malabar Hill, Bombay, India and died on 3 Nov 1943 at age 74.

Charles married Reeta Fenwich Blount, daughter of Clavell William Simpson Blount and Elizabeth, on 27 Apr 1898 in Belfast, Ireland. Reeta was born in 1872 in Suffolk and died in 1957 in Bath,
Somerset at age 85. They had one son: Charles Clavell Richardson.

7-Maj. Charles Clavell Richardson Reynolds® was born on 3 May 1899 in Hitchin, Hertfordshire, was christened on 24 Jun 1899 in St. Mary's, Hitchin, Hertfordshire, and died in 1964 in Newbury,
Berkshire at age 65.

Charles married Nancy Cecil Bull,** daughter of Joseph Cecil Bull, in 1937 in Hitchin, Hertfordshire. Nancy was born about 1915.
6-Lt. Col. John Richardson Reynolds was born on 8 Aug 1873 in West Ham, London and died on 2 Jul 1934 in 52 St. John's Park, Blackheath, London at age 60.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with CIE VD.
» He worked as a Manager of the Bomabay Port Trust Railway.

John married Beryl Margaret Reinold on 11 Apr 1901 in Ahmedabad, Bombay, India. Beryl was born on 22 Feb 1878, died on 17 Oct 1967 in Buckinghamshire at age 89, and was buried in Chilterns
Crematorium, Amersham, Buckinghamshire. They had one son: Kenneth Richardson.

7-Kenneth Richardson Reynolds was born on 1 Feb 1907 and died on 14 Mar 1953 at age 46.
Kenneth married Margaret Cuerdon on 5 Apr 1933 in St. Helier, Jersey, Channel Islands. Margaret died in 1941. They had one daughter: Marilyn Judy.

8-Marilyn Judy Reynolds was born in 1935 and died in 1935.
6-Willingham Franklin Reynolds was born on 8 Jun 1875 in Rock Ferry, Birkenhead, Cheshire, died on 7 Mar 1934 in Abbots Langley, Hertfordshire at age 58, and was buried in Thetford, Norfolk.

6-Violet Eugenia Reynolds was born on 22 Dec 1877 in Wanstead, Essex and died on 26 Jul 1966 at age 88. She had no known marriage and no known children.
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6-Lilian Mary Reynolds® was born on 10 Apr 1879 in Thetford, Norfolk and died on 11 Nov 1952 in Bath, Somerset at age 73.

Noted events in her life were:
» She was educated at Thetford Grammar School in Thetford, Norfolk.

» She was educated at Cheltenham Ladies College.

 She was educated at Newnam College, Cambridge.

» She worked as a Mathematician at the Cavendish Laboratory in Cambridge, Cambridgeshire.

Lilian married Charles Francis Mott®® on 22 Dec 1904 in Hampstead. Charles was born in 1877 in Reigate, Surrey and died in 1967 at age 90. They had two children: Nevill Francis and Margaret Joan.

Noted events in his life were:

He was educated at Reigate Grammar School in Reigate, Surrey.

He was educated at King's College, London.

He was educated at Trinity College, Cambridge.

He worked as a Physicist at the Cavendish Laboratory in Cambridge, Cambridgeshire.
He worked as a Teacher at Giggleswick School in Giggleswick, Yorkshire.

He was educated at Director of Education for Cheshire in 1918.

He worked as a Director of Education for Liverpool in 1922 in Liverpool.

7-Prof. Sir Nevill Francis Mott®2® was born on 30 Sep 1905 in 20 Clarendon Road, Leeds, Yorkshire and died on 8 Aug 1996 in Milton Keynes Hospital, Milton Keynes, Buckinghamshire at age 90.

General Notes: Mott, Sir Nevill Francis (1905- 1996), theoretical physicist, was born on 30 September 1905 in a nursing home at 20 Clarendon Road, Leeds, the elder child of (Charles) Francis Mott,
senior science master at Giggleswick School, and his wife, Lilian Mary, née Reynolds. A daughter, Joan, was born two years later. Mott's father, who later became director of education for Liverpool,
was originally a physicist, and his mother had been the best female mathematician of her year at Cambridge; they had met while working in the Cavendish Laboratory at Cambridge. Mott's early
childhood was spent in Giggleswick, and then in Brocton, on the edge of Cannock Chase, being taught at home by his mother until he was ten. He was then sent as a boarder to Baswich House
preparatory school where he recalled that the headmaster, G. F. A. Osborne, ‘was an excellent teacher, taking me well on in algebra and Latin before I left, and, as far as | can remember, even
introducing me to calculus' (Mott, 5). In 1918 Mott won a scholarship to Clifton College, where he spent five unhappy years. Clifton had very good laboratories, but it was a superb mathematics teacher,
H. C. Beaven, who made most impression on Mott and turned him towards mathematical physics.

Early research

Mott won a major scholarship to St John's College, Cambridge, in December 1923, and began in mathematics in 1924. He compressed the course into two years, and obtained first-class honours with a
distinction in 1926. He spent his third year struggling to master the new theories of quantum mechanics, with which no one in Cambridge except Paul Dirac, who was too reticent to help much, was
familiar. His first significant paper, using Schrodinger's wave mechanics to prove the scattering law that underpinned Rutherford's deduction of the nuclear atom, was published early in 1928, by which
time Mott was officially a research student at the Cavendish, working under R. H. Fowler's supervision. Mott never begrudged the intellectual effort spent on learning German in order to follow quantum
mechanics, and he later developed strong views about the desirability of scientists learning foreign languages. He became president of the Modern Languages Association in 1954— 5.

Mott spent the autumn of 1928 at Niels Bohr's Institute in Copenhagen. There, for the first time, he found a lively and stimulating community of theoreticians and realized 'how [physics] was a social
activity and how a teacher should be with students and how beautiful physics could be' (Mott, 25), a realization which had a profound effect on the way that he was to run his own laboratories and the
collaboration he promoted between experimentalists and theoreticians. While in Copenhagen he continued to investigate the implications of quantum mechanics for Rutherford's scattering law, applying
Dirac's new theory of electron spin to the scattering of electrons by nuclei and deducing that their spins would be polarized in the process. Stimulated by J. R. Oppenheimer's experiments on electron
scattering, Mott looked, on his return to Cambridge, at the effect of symmetry in the collisions of two identical Fermi-Dirac particles, such as electrons or alpha particles, predicting anomalous scattering
at 45° which was later verified by Chadwick.

Chadwick took me along to see Rutherford, who said 'if you think of anything else like this, come and tell me." This certainly made my day. In fact I think it was on this day that | gained complete
confidence in my ability to make a career in theoretical physics. (Mott, 30— 31)

Mott subsequently spent a term at Géttingen before returning to England to take up a lectureship at Manchester under W. L. Bragg in autumn 1929. His first book, An Outline of Wave Mechanics
(1930), was based on the lecture course he gave there, and his interest in the properties of materials dates from this time, no doubt stimulated by contact with Bragg and his crystallography group. Mott
remained in Manchester for only a year, before returning to Cambridge as a fellow of Gonville and Caius College. He had married Ruth Eleanor Horder (1906- 2000), daughter of Gerald Morley Horder,
architect's quantity surveyor, on 24 March 1930; she was a classics student at Newnham College to whom he had been engaged for two years, and they bought a house in Sedley Taylor Road. Ruth later
taught classics part-time, and gave harpsichord concerts. Through their sixty-six years of marriage, Mott gave Ruth credit for being a 'marvellous understanding wife who creates the conditions in which
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| can operate' (Independent, 12 Aug 1996). Mott was ill at ease with Caius, which he thought over-traditional, but found the Cavendish rather more theory-friendly than previously. At Fowler's
suggestion, in collaboration with an experimental physicist, Harrie Massey, he wrote The Theory of Atomic Collisions (1933), the first of thirteen authoritative, co-authored books.

Bristol

In 1933 Mott succeeded Sir John Lennard-Jones as professor of theoretical physics at Bristol University. He was elected a fellow of the Royal Society in 1936. He went to Bristol determined to build a
close collaboration with experimentalists, and found suitable topics in research that Harry Jones, Herbert Skinner, and Clarence Zener were conducting into the structure of metals. Following up Skinner's
experiments, they showed in an article published in the Physical Review of 1934 that the soft X-ray spectra from light metallic elements demonstrate the existence of a sharp Fermi surface (a theoretical
concept introduced by Jones and Zener in 1934 to describe the limit to the energy that metallic electrons can have when the metal is in its ground state). Mott recorded: 'It was a revelation to me that
guantum mechanics could penetrate into the business of the metals industry' (Mott, 48). He pursued this insight and, with Jones, published The Theory of the Properties of Metals and Alloys in 1936.

Influenced by the work of R. Pohl on colour centres in crystals, Mott next turned his attention to semiconductors, showing, in an article published in the Proceedings of the Royal Society of London in
1939, that the process involved in rectifying junctions between semiconductors and metals was one of thermal excitation, rather than tunnelling, as had previously been believed. In another article, written
with R. W. Gurney and published in the Proceedings of the Royal Society of London the previous year, he had elucidated the theory of the photographic latent image— how light, absorbed all over a
grain of silver bromide in a photographic plate, produces a speck of silver somewhere on the surface— which remains the foundation of photographic theory today. Together with Gurney he published
Electronic Processes in lonic Crystals in 1940. Mott and his group opened up the subject of solid-state physics (as it became called) worldwide; the books are notable for their reliance on physical
principles and intuitive approximations, and their avoidance of sophisticated mathematics, which horrified some of Mott's continental colleagues; but 'slowly, slowly ... the success of their approach
became so evident that no-one questioned seriously their value' (R. Smoluchowski, 101).

In Bristol the Motts lived initially in a flat at 4 Caledonia Place, Clifton; they moved in 1939 to 6 Princes Buildings, where they had superb views over the Avon Gorge and the docks. They had two
daughters, Elizabeth (Libby) and Alice, born in 1941 and 1943 respectively. Through childhood Libby developed a severe mental handicap and reluctantly they decided in the 1950s that she needed
residential care. Alice later married the mathematician Michael Crampin.

During the Second World War, Mott worked first on the propagation of radio waves, and later, from 1943, as superintendent of theory at the armaments research department, where he contributed to the
theory of the explosive fragmentation of shell and bomb cases. At the end of the war he was offered professorships at both Oxford and Cambridge. However, he was reluctant to leave Bristol, where he
had outstanding support from the university, was assured that he would succeed Arthur Tyndall as head of department, and had just been offered a beautiful Georgian residence, Stuart House, on Royal
Fort, right next to the laboratory.

The war stimulated Mott's desire to strengthen physicists' links with industry, and to this end the post-war group he recruited to Bristol had strong interests in the mechanical properties of metals: Charles
Frank, Frank Nabarro, J. Mitchell, and Jaques Friedel (who married Ruth Mott's sister, Mary Horder) became world leaders in investigations of dislocations, work-hardening, and fatigue. Mott's own
contribution, though impressive, was not as outstanding as his earlier (and later) work on solid-state physics, for he was becoming increasingly involved in university administration. He was also
concerned to revive the fortunes of British scientific publishing: '[Since the war] English had become the language of science and the American journals ... had cashed in on it. | felt that we should have
our share' (Mott, 76). His increasing involvement with the Philosophical Magazine dated from this time, as did an interest in science policy. In 1946 he became the first president of the Atomic Scientists'
Association, which aimed to investigate proposals for the control of nuclear energy and to put the true facts before the public; he became one of the few British scientists to argue against the UK
developing its own atomic bomb, and later, in 1962, he hosted a 'Pugwash' conference on arms control.

Cambridge

In 1954 W. L. Bragg resigned the Cavendish professorship at Cambridge, and Mott was elected to succeed him and moved his family to 31 Sedley Taylor Road, Cambridge. In contrast to Bristol he
found that 'The Cavendish ... was a going concern with little opportunity to start new things; on the research side it took me some time to find a role' (Mott, 102). Among these going concerns was the
nuclear research programme, a relic of Rutherford's tenure at the laboratory; one of Mott's first, difficult, decisions was to cancel ambitious plans for a linear accelerator which, he believed, would still
not be adequate to rival the American lead in nuclear physics. He continued Bragg's policy of diversification at the Cavendish, and favoured a very open administration, regularly consulting the heads of
research groups. He strongly encouraged the molecular biology group, recently successful in their search for the double-helix structure of DNA, in their search for an identity and site independent of the
Cavendish, for he foresaw that they would grow out of all proportion to the rest of the laboratory. Into the space thus created he transferred Bowden's group on surface science from the physical
chemistry department, providing a nucleus of solid-state physics in the Cavendish. He was able to promote these moves by his membership of the general board, a committee of twelve that made most of
the decisions in Cambridge. Despite this position he constantly felt frustrated by the lack of any central policy-making body for the university.

While still seeking a research role Mott threw himself into education policy, at Cambridge and in schools. He argued strenuously for fundamental changes to the Cambridge natural sciences tripos, and
also to the scholarship exam which, he thought, encouraged overspecialization in schools. He became chairman of the education committee of the Institute of Physics, and of the Nuffield advisory
committee on physical science which was seeking to modernize science teaching in schools; he sat on the government committee on education between the ages of sixteen and eighteen and the Ministry
of Education's standing committee on the supply of teachers; and from 1965 to 1975 he served on the education committee of the Royal Society. In 1962 he received a knighthood.

In 1959 Mott was elected master of his college, Gonville and Caius, on the resignation of James Chadwick. The college at the time was very divided between conservative and progressive parties, and
Mott was seen as a unifying candidate. He succeeded in his new role, which he enjoyed for several years. Caius gave him an excellent venue for the meetings and conferences he was so fond of
organizing, bringing scientists or policy-makers together to stimulate and progress their views. However, the old divisions surfaced again and Mott in turn resigned in 1966.

Semiconductors
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The origins of Mott's work on amorphous, or glassy, semiconductors, for which he (together with P. W. Anderson and J. H. Van Vleck) received the Nobel prize in 1977, go back to the 1930s, but Mott
took the subject up strongly on resigning from the mastership. In a paper published in the Proceedings of the Physical Society of London in 1949 he had shown theoretically that certain non-metallic
materials would become metals under extreme pressure as the electrons got closer together, and that this 'Mott transition' would be a sharp, rather than gradual one. The required pressure was too high
for an experimental test to be practicable, but in 1958 Fritzsche showed experimentally that a comparable effect was seen in the semiconductor germanium as the concentration of impurities (and hence
of electrons) increased. In the same year P. W. Anderson suggested that a similar, sharp, metal-insulator transition would occur if solids became disordered (that is, non-crystalline or amorphous), as the
randomness localized the electrons, preventing them from moving freely.

These results introduced Mott to the problems of disordered solids, and he introduced new concepts: the 'mobility edge’, which separated the localized and unlocalized states in Anderson's theory, the '8-N
rule’; and 'minimum metallic conductivity', to describe their behaviour. He gave a comprehensive account of what was by then a vast literature on this subject in Metal-Insulator Transitions (1974). In an
article published in the Philosophical Magazine in 1969 he considered electrical conduction on the insulating side of the transition, formulating the Mott T-% law, which strikingly displays his intuitive
genius and describes the 'variable range hopping' of electrons between localized states over a distance that is temperature dependent. Mott's collaborator, E. A. Davis, recalled:

At the time, few groups showed any interest in them. Although the Xerox Corporation in America achieved great success with their first 'dry’ photocopying machine, which used amorphous selenium as
the photoreceptor, the physics behind the process was not understood. In the Soviet Union, Kolomiets had been working on the properties of glasses; in Germany, Stuke had a small group; and, in the
United Kingdom, Spear was studying transport in thin films of germanium and silicon. What Mott did was to bring together these disparate activities using his by now well-tested methods. Pouncing
eagerly on new results, he formulated his ideas and communicated them to interested parties. He organized mini-conferences (in the way he had done at Bristol), visited laboratories for personal
discussions, suggested PhD topics, and wrote draft papers for wide circulation and comment. Thereby he rapidly became the father figure of a growing community. (Davis, xXii— xxiii)

Mott's understanding that amorphous materials could act as semiconductors ushered in the age of the truly cheap electronic device, for they were much easier to prepare than the crystalline materials

used in most previous electronic systems, as they did not need to be anything like as pure. "These discoveries quite simply ended the notion of the computer as the preserve of aerospace and defence
agencies, big industries and scientific research institutes, and added it to the list of household utensils' (The Times, 12 Aug 1996).

'Retirement’

Mott retired from the Cavendish professorship in 1971, but remained active within the department. Although eighty-one when high-temperature superconductors were discovered in 1986, he plunged into
a new area of research, co-authoring two books on the subject with A. S. Alexandrov— High-Temperature Superconductors and other Superfluids (1994) and Polarons and Bipolarons (1995)— in which
they outlined the idea of 'bipolarons’, a virtual particle consisting of two electrons and the associated lattice polarization, as the superconducting mechanism. This remained one of a number of competing
theories, unresolved at the time of Mott's death in 1996.

Mott had been brought up as an atheist, but Ruth was an Anglican and Mott was attracted by that tradition as evinced in the beauty of church architecture and of traditional services. However, it was not
until the 1950s that he began to think deeply about the relationship between science and Christian faith, impelled largely by Mervyn Stockwood, then vicar of Great St Mary's, the Cambridge University
church, who persuaded him to talk on 'Science and belief' in 1957. He began to attend his parish church, occasionally preached, and was eventually baptized and confirmed in the mid-1980s, being
admitted to the church on a simple statement of his own rather unorthodox beliefs. Mott rejected a substantial fraction of the creed and refused to believe in an omnipotent God who could perform
miracles. He did believe, however, that human consciousness could not be explained or understood through the laws of physics and chemistry, but was a God-given gift that allowed man to understand
natural beauty. He outlined his beliefs in 1991 when he edited Can Scientists Believe?:

To give meaning to consciousness, a belief in God who is outside us is necessary to me. Without Him life can seem a tale told by an idiot. I believe in God because | wish to do so, to give meaning to
human life. (Davis, 323)

In 1980 the Motts left Cambridge to live at Aspley Guise in Bedfordshire, near their daughter Alice and their grandchildren. From there Mott still visited Cambridge for several days a week. Eventually
Ruth became too frail to live alone and went to live in a residential home in Cambridge, where Mott would visit her, staying overnight with his sister Joan.

A tall man, Mott was often described as stork-like. He had a wide variety of interests, possessed great charm and friendliness, and loved entertaining. He received many honours, including the Copley,
royal, and Hughes medals of the Royal Society, the French Chevalier de I'ordre national du mérite, and numerous honorary degrees. He was made a Companion of Honour in 1995. He died of heart
failure in Milton Keynes General Hospital on 8 August 1996, and was survived by his wife, Ruth, and both his daughters.

Isobel Falconer

Noted events in his life were:

* He was awarded with CH MA DSC FlInstP FRS.

» He was awarded with the Nobel Prize for Physics in 1977.

» He was educated at Clifton College 1918 To 1923.

» He worked as a Theoretical Physicist.

» He was educated at St John's College, Cambridge in 1924-1926.

Nevill married Ruth Eleanor Horder,*3 daughter of Gerald Morley Horder and Emma Ruth Plaistowe, on 24 Mar 1930. Ruth was born on 31 Dec 1906 in Brentford, Middlesex and died in Apr 2000
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in Cambridge, Cambridgeshire at age 93. They had two children: Mary Anne Elizabeth and Alice Frances.
8-Mary Anne Elizabeth Mott

8-Alice Frances Mott
Alice married Prof. Michael Crampin. They had three children: Emma Frances, Edmund John, and Cecily Mary.

9-Emma Frances Crampin
9-Edmund John Crampin
9-Cecily Mary Crampin

7-Margaret Joan Mott3® was born on 20 Aug 1907 in Giggleswick, Yorkshire and died on 10 Jul 2001 in Cambridge, Cambridgeshire at age 93.

General Notes: Joan lived through her passions. A rich inner life was sustained by her deep love of nature, especially the Lake District, music, poetry, and Shakespeare...and cats! When she won a
mathematics scholarship to Newnham and switched to Economics, the 'Dismal Science', finding a piano in the Old Lab in the Newnham garden meant that she could play Bach and Beethoven sonatas to
lift her spirits. In the role of Prospero in her last year at school, it was said that 'very few girls could have sustained the part as she did'. Joan played many parts in her long life, which encompassed work in
housing, on committees when young such as the Wirral Society and the Merseyside YHA, and later in life as Liberal Councillor Fitch on Cambridge City and County Councils, and on the committees of
the Cambridge HousingCommittee, the Cambridgeshire Cottage Improvement Society, Storey's Charity and Cambridge Central Aid. For her voluntary work on Housing Associations Joan was awarded
the OBE. Although Joan doubted she had the necessary faith to become a member of the Society of Friends, she joined Jesus Lane Meeting in 1967 and was happy there. Later she was a founder

member of Hartington Grove Meeting. Although Joan says in her Autobiography that she 'was never a career girl', her life-long interest in housing began when in 1928 aged 21 she trained in the methods
of Octavia Hill in South London. She lived in the Mary Ward Settlement and from there she could walk to the Queens Hall where the Proms were held and Sir Henry Wood was still the conductor. Soon
she took the opportunity to return to Chester, where she had lived as a girl, and was to see life in the slums. There was no National Health , nor any of the benefits we know today and she was acutely
conscious of the bad teeth of the young mothers who looked old before their time. Joan Mott first met Arthur Fitch when she was 15 and he was a 35 year old GP in Liverpool. Sixteen years later they
married. Their honeymoon was in Patterdale and they climbed Helvellyn. They shared a love of music, literature and art but Joan writes that she could not follow him in his deep knowledge of religion and
philosophy. It was a great sadness to Joan that they were childless, especially when Arthur's son, from his first marriage, had a family of six, though Louis was tragically drowned when his youngest child
was a baby. Her step-daughter, Olive, Louis's sister, became one of Joan's dearest friends. Joan's home life was centred in the school, now known as Breckenbrough, which Arthur had founded and ran

on Quaker principles. During the war as school staff were called up, they were replaced with conscientious objectors. This would have been familiar to Joan whose mother, from a long line of Quakers,
had been a non-militant suffragist. Arthur was given leave to reclaim an ancient meeting house in Newton-in-Bowland where the school spent a quiet hour every Sunday in Meeting for Worship. Joan
taught folk dancing at the school and to a group in Leeds and also founded a Women'sinstitute in the village.The school became the Arthur Fitch Educational Trust and he a salaried employee at £1000 a
year. He had put all his money into the school but was no longer 'monarch of all he surveyed'. It ended unhappily when Arthur's frustration with the Trustees brought him to resignation. Joan writes that he
thought Yorkshire Quarterly Meeting treated him very unquakerly and he never attended Meeting again. With sadness they left Yorkshire and moved to Bath to be near Joan's parents and her brother
Nevill. They lived by taking lodgers. Soon Joan's mother was to die and then Arthur became ill with lung cancer. They spent his last months in Ambleside where his widowed daughter-in-law could help
look after him and Joan would walk alone on the fells. Two sources of happiness for Joan in that sad time in Bath were canoeing othe canal, where Joan writes that one day she was privileged to save a
drowning cat. The other joy was the recorder quintet. Playing Dowland's ‘Lachrymae’ and '‘Semper Dowland Semper Dolens' stayed with her. Joan and her father moved to Cambridge, to Sedley Taylor
Road, where her brother Nevill, who was Cavendish Professor of Physics, lived with his wife and daughters. Their parents had met at the Cavendish Laboratory. Joan and Nevill had been keen
mountaineers together as teenagers. Before that when she was eight and he ten, she had wandered about the house 'like a bereaved cat' when he had been sent away to boarding school. Joan's second

visit to see the Queen was with Nevill when he was made a Companion of Honour. She writes about 'an even more impressive episode, when she wen to Stockholm for Nevill to receive the Nobel Prize
for Physics, and adds, 'It was agreeable to be treated as a VIP for a while, even though it was basking in his reflected glory'. Joan was back in Cambridge after twenty-eight years and her generous
voluntary contribution to many housing associations began, as well as her work as a councillor. Although Joan appeared self-effacing, her accomplishments and good works were many, varied and
formidable. She would talk fearlessly and openly about any topic. As she writes in her Autobiography of her offer of an OBE, "A really good Quaker would perhaps have said 'No, thank-you' but it was
much too much fun for me to refuse".

It was after the death of her father and aunt, when her Sunday mornings were now free, that Joan found her way to Meeting at Jesus Lane. She had been an attender for many years but was agreeably
surprised when visited by two weighty Friends to discuss membership that the word 'God' had not been mentioned. Later Joan was one of the founder members of Hartington Grove Meeting, and with her
independent spirit drove herself to meeting until she died aged 93 in 2001. She was also a founder member of the poetry group where her sense of humour and ability to quote from memory, especially
Wordsworth, was much valued.For her memorial Meeting at Hartington Grove the room was packed withpeople who seemed to represent all the voluntary agencies of Cambridge, mostly women. Many
of them spoke movingly of Joan's contribution to the work. Hers was a life that spoke in deeds. We give thanks for the life of Joan Fitch. A sonnet: on being asked "What do Quakers believe?

'Oh yes it's true that Quakers have no creed

No form of words to offer day by day.

'Let your life speak’ is what they like to say,

And speak it must, tho' not in word but deed.
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But there's another saying which they heed:
Their Founder bade them walk beneath the sun,
'‘Answering that of God in everyone',

And that's a faith on which the soul may feed.

In everyone the Holy Spirit dwells!

This is faith, the truth of which impels

Them to the Quaker testament of Peace,

And they can neither hate, nor kill, nor fight,
But try to live forever in the light

By grace of which all war and strife must cease.
Signed in and on behalf of Cambridgeshire Area Meetingheld on 13 October, 2007
Jan Arriens, Clerk

Yearly Meeting 2008 Testimonies

Noted events in her life were:

* She was awarded with OBE.

 She was educated at Newnham College, Oxford.

» She worked as a Councillor for Cambridge.

» She worked as a Councillore for Cambridge County Council.

 She was a Quaker.

Margaret married Dr. Arthur Fitch3 in 1938. Arthur was born on 5 Oct 1887 in Braintree, Essex and died in 1978 in Uttlesford, Essex at age 91. They had no children.

General Notes: In 1934 Dr. Arthur Fitch, a Psychiatrist with great enthusiasm and few funds procured Dunnow Hall at Newton-in-Bowland, a stonebuilt Victorian mansion, to provide a 'controlled
environment and regular life' for maladjusted children. For sometime previously he had felt that the only way to treat some disturbed children was to take them away from the environment that had
caused their problems and to educate them in an atmosphere of peace and tranquility. He persuaded the Squire of Slaidburn to allow him tenancy of the older wing of Dunnow Hall for his own residence
and to make the rest of the house habitable for the staff and children. In September 1934, after great problems, firstly in finding suitable children and then with accepting educationally subnormal children
the school was opened. Dr. Fitch was gradually able to increase the number of suitable clients when the School Medical Services came to his aid.

Arthur Fitch gathered round him teachers and relations with varying qualifications and expertise, but mostly with drive and vision and a dedication which led them to take part in whatever was needed to
keep the establishment running effectively. Not only were potential teachers asked about their qualifications, but whether they could milk a cow or service a boiler! His own daughter Olive acted as an
assistant matron for a time and his mother, the beloved Grannie of the family, was an indefatigable darner of everyone's socks. Several young teachers, trained at Charlotte Mason College at Ambleside,
joined the staff, one of whom married Louis, Arthur Fitch's son, in 1938. Daughter-in-law Joan remembers that farming interests and involvements for the children were quite as important as the
academic schooling. She also recalls a great mix of children at the time, some normal, some maladjusted and some with mental handicap, with ages ranging from 5 to 19, and that the children themselves
adjusted to each other in a family way, making allowances for the less able in whichever way became apparent.

Also in 1938 Arthur Fitch remarried and his wife Joan was able to make much needed contacts with village people, and as the war clouds gathered, helped to dispel some of the rumours of the ‘queer
folk up at the Hall'. During rumours of war and the war itself, many refugees came for sanctuary to Dunnow. Some were pupils, to help them adjust in a strange country without their parents, and some
were staff to assist with domestic or agricultural duties. As the refugee adults were whisked away to internment, so they were replaced by Conscientious Objectors directed into teaching and agriculture.
Arthur Fitch had long held to the Quaker Peace Testimony and now he joined the Religious Society of Friends. As a consequence of this he was now keen to provide a Quaker Meeting for his
household. In Newton-on-Bowland was a small ancient Meeting House not used for many years, and leave was granted for the school to use this building. Thither the congregation made their way each
Sunday morning for a Meeting for Worship often with a Sunday School flavour. Members of staff took it in turn to recall Quaker historical figures and events, and other religious landmarks in the
Christian calendar. As much of the Meeting was held in silence as is the tradition of Friends, the staff were amazed at the ability of the children to sit quietly during this time, given the restless nature of
many of them. The situation of the Meeting House with its views across a patchwork of fields, fells and moor was contributory to this vision of peace in a war-torn world.

Sidney Hill, with his wife Kate, went to Dunnow Hall in 1942, staying until 1947, and remembers 'being met by our employer at Clitheroe Station and being driven over Waddington Fell to see the
splendid valley through which the River Hodder runs'. They recall being members of an interesting group of staff who included amongst them people who later became a Cambridge graduate, a Clinical
Psychologist, a Chartered Civil Engineer, and a Headmaster of a Local Authority School, whilst Sidney Hill himslef moved on to Special School education in Scotland and eventually to the Scottish
Inspectorate of Schools. Arthur Fitch laid down general guidelines but on the whole left the implementation of policy to other members of staff. He ran study seminars on Psychology and
Psychopathology of Children, which were both enlightening and stimulating. It was a time of transformation and development in the treatment and education of the maladjusted child in the average and
above average intelligence range. Kate Hill recalls that their salary was £70 per annum, plus board and lodging, but hours of work and conditions of service were not of importance and it was a happy
time. Other memories include impromptu free days out, walking on the fells with a picnic, a successful if noisy percussion band,a large workshop and an enthusiastic choir.

The beginning of the war caused problems by a large increase in numbers of children, some of the noral 1.Q. categories as evacuees from the cities, although at the same time the staff decreased in
number. The school survived when it was reorganised under an Educational Trust in 1945, in accordance with the provisions of the Education Act. The Society of Friends in Yorkshire was represented
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on the Board together with the Local Education Authority Representatives and Dr. Fitch became the Director, a role not easy for him to accept.
In June 1948 the school was moved to Ledston Hall near Castleford in West Yorkshire, an ancient Elizabethan mansion with a long history, and this was required to house 60 children with ten teaching
staff. At Ledston it was deemed necessary to smarten the children up and so from casual, comfortable boiler suits the boys were put into grey flannel suits with the girls in grey pinafore dresses. Their
blazers sported the badge of the Arthur Fitch Educational Trust and the school became more formal. Meeting for Worship was now held in the Great Hall of the house where 45 or so of the children
plus the staff could be comfortably seated.
Although Arthur Fitch was a Psychiatrist he did not practise intensive Psychotherapy with the children. In the words of his wife 'treatment was an apparently casual affair given as they needed it without
their knowledge'. As an administrator and organiser Dr. Fitch must have had considerable ability, although he did not suffer fools gladly. Looking beyond his time and its limitations he saw the needs of
maladjusted children as:

1. more such schools,

2. more teachers,

3. psychologists trained in remedial techniques,

4. more facilities and

5. a clear distinction between the needs of the maladjusted and the subnormal.
Dr. Fitch dealt with children of both sexes, but talks were held about a single sex school for boys as being a more viable proposition, which led to some dissention at the time. When Arthur Fitch retired in
1952 a schoolmaster was appointed as Head of the school.
http://www.users.globalnet.co.uk/~breck/breckenbrough/shchapterl.html
Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Psychiatrist and Educationalist.
» He worked as a Founder of (the later) Breckenbrough School in 1934 in Dunnow Hall, Newton in Bowland, Clitheroe, Lancashire.

» He was a Quaker.
5-Juliana Reynolds?® was born in 1844 in Upton, Essex and died in 1924 in Kendal, Cumbria at age 80.

4-Charles Pelly was born on 31 Jul 1812 and died on 30 Dec 1885 at age 73.

Charles married Julia Henrietta Dobbs, daughter of Rev. Richard Stewart Dobbs and Harriet Macaulay, on 18 Apr 1839. Julia died in 1886. They had nine children: Julia, Harriet Emma, Mary, Louisa Jane,
Charles Henry, Richard Stewart, Edward, Francis Raymond, and Emily Macaulay.

5-Julia Pelly died on 15 Apr 1934.

Julia married Thomas Frederick Andrew Agnew, son of Sir Andrew Agnew 7th Bt. Of Lochnaw and Madeline Carnegie, on 9 Oct 1861. Thomas was born on 5 Jul 1834 and died on 20 Nov 1924 at age 90.
They had ten children: Henriette, Geraldine, Douglas, Ernest Frederick, Ethel Patricia, Graham, Herman Maitland, Percy Reginald, Harold Carnegie, and Marion.

6-Henriette Agnew was born on 21 May 1864 and died on 6 Feb 1962 at age 97.
6-Geraldine Agnew was born on 19 Sep 1867 and died on 16 Feb 1919 at age 51.

6-Capt. Douglas Agnew was born on 5 Feb 1869 and died on 4 Jan 1953 at age 83.
6-Ernest Frederick Agnew was born on 6 Jan 1871 and died on 3 Aug 1958 at age 87.
6-Ethel Patricia Agnew was born on 9 Jan 1873 and died on 21 Jun 1965 at age 92.
6-Capt. Graham Agnew was born on 8 Oct 1874 and died on 25 Sep 1915 at age 40.
6-Herman Maitland Agnew was born on 29 Mar 1876 and died on 25 Dec 1901 at age 25.
6-Percy Reginald Agnew was born on 13 Jan 1878 and died on 19 Apr 1952 at age 74.

6-Capt. Harold Carnegie Agnew was born on 6 Mar 1881 and died on 22 Jan 1950 at age 68.
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6-Marion Agnew was born on 9 Mar 1885.

5-Harriet Emma Pelly died on 28 Nov 1928.
Harriet married Col. Charles John Pearse on 14 Apr 1859. Charles died in 1919.

Noted events in his life were:
* He worked as an Indian Army.

5-Mary Pelly died on 9 May 1924.
Mary married William D. Horsley on 7 Apr 1864. William died in 1899.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Madras Civil Service.

5-Louisa Jane Pelly died on 4 May 1929.
Louisa married Sir David Monro on 18 Nov 1865. David died on 9 Jan 1909.

5-Rev. Charles Henry Pelly was born on 4 Jul 1844 and died on 30 Mar 1921 at age 76.

Charles married Katherine Harvey, daughter of Lt. Col. Gardiner Harvey and Rosetta Gage, in Sep 1867. Katherine died on 17 Jan 1907. They had eight children: Rosetta, Charles Brent Neville, Annie
Harriet, William Francis Henry, John Stanley Richard, Ethel Mary, Frank Le Quesne, and George Sinclair.

6-Rosetta Pelly was born on 23 Oct 1868 and died in 1920 at age 52.
6-Charles Brent Neville Pelly was born on 25 Feb 1870 and died on 6 May 1933 at age 63.
6-Annie Harriet Pelly was born on 27 Oct 1872 and died on 11 Aug 1960 at age 87.
6-Maj. William Francis Henry Pelly was born on 9 Apr 1874 and died on 1 Jul 1916 at age 42.
6-John Stanley Richard Pelly was born on 25 Apr 1875 and died on 28 Mar 1903 at age 27.
6-Ethel Mary Pelly was born on 23 Sep 1876 and died on 29 Jun 1959 at age 82.
6-Frank Le Quesne Pelly was born on 2 Mar 1880.
6-George Sinclair Pelly was born on 12 Dec 1885 and died on 28 Oct 1946 at age 60.
5-Richard Stewart Pelly was born on 13 Jun 1846 and died in 1928 at age 82.
5-Edward Pelly was born on 2 Nov 1848 and died on 18 Feb 1928 at age 79.

5-Rear Admiral Francis Raymond Pelly was born on 21 Dec 1851 and died on 15 Nov 1907 at age 55.
Francis married Mary Posnett, daughter of Rev. Robert Posnett and Harriet Macaulay.

5-Emily Macaulay Pelly was born on 3 Aug 1857 and died on 24 Sep 1918 at age 61.
Emily married Frederick Maitland-Heriot on 6 Jan 1882. Frederick was born on 14 Sep 1852 and died on 31 Aug 1925 at age 72. They had one son: Gerald lan.

6-Lt. Col. Gerald lan Maitland-Heriot was born on 8 May 1898 in Rivadavia, Buenos Aires, Argentina and died on 19 Jul 1988 in Constantia, Cape Province, South Africa at age 90.
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Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at Sedbergh.
Gerald married Paula Elsie Barbara Gordon on 5 Apr 1931. Paula died in 2004. They had one daughter: Celia.

7-Celia Maitland-Heriot
Celia married Robert Edmund Scott Hanbury, son of Capt. Robert Francis Hanbury and Margaret Lucy Scott. They had two children: Roland William Edmund and Melanie Rhona.

8-Roland William Edmund Hanbury
Roland married Heather Gail Adams.

8-Melanie Rhona Hanbury

4-Albert Pelly was born on 3 Sep 1813 and died on 18 Sep 1894 at age 81.
Albert married Barbara Ellen Streatfeild, daughter of Rev. Thomas Streatfeild and Harriet Champion, on 4 Oct 1844. Barbara died on 21 Dec 1898. They had seven children: Albert Champion, William
Henry, John Henry, Frederick Streatfeild, Harriet Barbara, Herbert Alexander, and Alice Leonora.

5-Albert Champion Pelly was born on 8 Aug 1845 and died on 16 Mar 1915 at age 69.

Albert married Alice Ferguson on 25 Sep 1878. Alice died on 3 Mar 1929.

5-William Henry Pelly was born on 29 May 1847 and died on 14 Jan 1932 at age 84.
5-Capt. John Henry Pelly was born on 17 Dec 1848 and died in Jul 1920 at age 71.
5-Frederick Streatfeild Pelly was born on 17 Dec 1848 and died on 7 Dec 1914 at age 65.
5-Harriet Barbara Pelly was born on 19 Mar 1851.
5-Herbert Alexander Pelly was born on 17 Jun 1855 and died in Jan 1937 at age 81.
5-Alice Leonora Pelly was born on 27 Mar 1857 and died on 7 Dec 1944 at age 87.
4-Capt. Richard Wilson Pelly®6:3738 was born on 1 Nov 1814 in Upton, Essex and died on 25 May 1890 in West Ham, London at age 75.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Officer of the Royal Navy.

Richard married Katherine Jane Fry, daughter of John Gurney Fry?®2%3 and Rachel Reynolds,?®?° in Jun 1851 in West Ham, London. Katherine was born in 1831 in St. Mildred,
Middlesex and died on 1 Nov 1901 in Buckhurst Hill, Essex at age 70. They had ten children: John Richard Gurney, Edmund Neville Richard, Emma Marion (Maria), Richard Arnold, Edith Rachel, Alice
Maud, Herbert Cecil, Alfred Digby, Henry Bertram, and Frederick Raymond.

5-John Richard Gurney Pelly*® was born on 25 Mar 1855 in London and died on 4 Nov 1940 in Epping, Essex at age 85.

John married Jane Gurney Leatham,* daughter of Charles Albert Leatham*4%4! and Rachel Pease,*%4%42 on 27 Feb 1878 in Woodford Green. Jane was born on 16 Feb 1857 in Gunnergate Hall, Marton,
Middlesbrough, Yorkshire and died on 10 Mar 1917 in Exeter, Devon at age 60. They had four children: Elaine, Vivian Gurney, Kathleen, and Eustace Gurney.

General Notes: 26 Feb 1878, Tues: To Middlesbro' to try & settle the plan for John Dunning's conveyance - nearly lost my temper over him - pitched into him hard, got nothing done but we were to see

Rocliffe and see how far they would be inclined to alter the boundary - attended to other matters at the Estate Office - then on to Darlington - where | went through financial arrangements with Charles R. Fry -
then off to Town, travelled with Raylton Dixon to York, then on alone. At King's Cross found Alfred - he & | dined together & then took a trap to Forest House which we reached soon after nine o'clock - dinner
had been in a tent where we found John Bright, William Fowler, Robert Fowler, Capt. Pelly, Jack Pelly (the bridegroom) &c &c &c - the evening was soon over and we went to bed.

27 Feb 1878, Wed: Jennie Leatham's wedding day - a few of us breakfasted in the tent - Bridesmaids and Bride had some difficulty in getting theirs in the billiard room. Walked most of the way to Woodford
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Church with Edward Leatham; the ceremony went off well and prettily - 5 maids in pink & 5 in blue; back to Forest House with Sam Howard; took Mrs Percy Pelly into breakfast - speeches from self, Pelly,
William Fowler, John Bright & Richard Pelly. Then off to the House with Edward Leatham where we voted with E.H. Knatchbull-Hugessen (Lib Sandwich) on his Colonial Marriages Bill, majority against
Government 15; back to Forest House to dinner, & then on to Monkhouse where there were some capital juvenile theatricals, very good & then a little dance; home by 11.40.

The (unpublished) Diaries of Sir Joseph Whitwell Pease Bt..

6-Elaine Pelly was born on 22 Dec 1878 in Chigwell and died on 8 Aug 1956 in Sawbridgeworth, Hertfordshire at age 77.

6-Vivian Gurney Pelly was born on 5 Jun 1881 in Chigwell and died on 1 Dec 1949 in Lindfield, West Sussex at age 68.

Vivian married Dorothy Penrose Sewell,*® daughter of William Henry Sewell and Ellen Starbuck, on 22 Jun 1907 in Epping, Essex. Dorothy was born on 12 Apr 1885 in Epping, Essex and died in 1972 at
age 87. They had one son: Douglas Gurney.

7-Douglas Gurney Pelly was born on 30 Apr 1910 in North Weald, died on 5 Jan 2001 in Essex at age 90, and was buried on 16 Jan 2001 in St Marys, Widdington, Essex.

Douglas married Monica Tate, daughter of Lt. Col. Arthur Wignall Tate and Violet Elaine Few, on 14 May 1935 in London. Monica was born on 7 Feb 1912 in London and died on 18 Nov 2000 at age
88. They had three children: John Gurney, Claire Rose, and William Henry.

8-John Gurney Pelly was born on 3 Jun 1938 in Kensington, London and died on 20 Nov 2015 at age 77.
John married Vanda Joan Allfrey, daughter of Col. Hubert Mortimer Allfrey and Joan Bullock-Marsham. They had three children: Sam Gurney, Jamie Rupert, and Guy Wignall.

9-Sam Gurney Pelly
Sam married Susannah Lennox. They had three children: Melocina, Mirella Mary, and Juno Mary.

10-Melocina Pelly

10-Mirella Mary Pelly

10-Juno Mary Pelly
9-Jamie Rupert Pelly

9-Guy Wignall Pelly
Guy married Elizabeth Alleen Wilson, daughter of Charles Kemmons Wilson Il and Norma Carruthers Thompson.

8-Claire Rose Pelly

Claire married Henry George Charles Alexander Herbert 17th Earl Pembroke, son of Sidney Charles Herbert 16th Earl of Pembroke and Lady Mary Dorothea Hope, on 20 Jan 1966. Henry
was born on 19 May 1939 and died on 7 Oct 2003 at age 64. They had four children: Sophia Elizabeth, Emma Louise, Flora Katinka, and William Alexander Sidney.

9-Lady Sophia Elizabeth Herbert
Sophia married Alexander Patrick Murray-Threipland, son of Stuart Wyndham Murray-Threipland and Belinda Mary Musker. They had one son: Finnian Wyndham.

10-Finnian Wyndham Murray-Threipland
9-Lady Emma Louise Herbert
9-Lady Flora Katinka Herbert

9-William Alexander Sidney Herbert 18th Earl Of Pembroke
William married Victoria Bullough, daughter of Michael Bullough. They had two children: Alexandra Eloise Ekaterina and Reginald Henry Michael.
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10-Lady Alexandra Eloise Ekaterina Herbert

10-Reginald Henry Michael Herbert Lord Herbert
Claire next married Stuart Wyndham Murray-Threipland.

8-William Henry Pelly

William married Anne Byrne, daughter of Francis Byrne. They had two children: Henry Francis and Rupert Alexander.
9-Henry Francis Pelly

9-Rupert Alexander Pelly
Vivian next married Hilda Victoria Cole, daughter of John Henry Cole, on 7 Sep 1946 in Haywards Heath, West Sussex. Hilda was born on 15 Nov 1899 in Wotton under Edge, Gloucestershire.

6-Kathleen Pelly was born on 8 Dec 1883 and died on 10 Jul 1957 at age 73.

6-Eustace Gurney Pelly was born on 3 Jul 1886 in Loughton and died on 13 Feb 1954 in Torquay, Devon at age 67.

Eustace married Dulcibella Eden, daughter of Robert Hildyard Henley Eden and Maud Effie Mary Von Guttenburg, on 1 Dec 1924 in Southampton, Hampshire. Dulcibella was born on 23 May 1891 in
Alfreton, Derbyshire.

John next married Claire Emily Buxton, daughter of Edward North Buxton***® and Emily Digby, on 9 Apr 1918. Claire was born on 28 Mar 1873 in Knighton, Buckhurst Hill, Essex and died on 2 Jul 1959 at
age 86.

5-Edmund Neville Richard Pelly*® was born on 12 Dec 1858 in The Willows, Plaistow, Essex, died on 1 Oct 1931 in Witham Lodge, Witham, Newlands, Essex at age 72, and was buried in All Saints'
churchyard, Witham, Essex.

Edmund married Emma Mary Fowler,3®4° daughter of John Fowler?4240:4647.48 and Elizabeth Lucy Pease,24%40474849 on 12 Jul 1887 in Harlow, Essex. Emma was born on 4 May

1858 in Tottenham, London, died on 13 Dec 1939 in Witham Lodge, Witham, Newlands, Essex at age 81, and was buried in All Saints' churchyard, Witham, Essex. They had five children: John Noel, Edmund
Godfrey, Cicely Edith, Hubert Richard, and Denis Edward.

6-Capt. John Noel Pelly RN*? was born on 15 Jun 1888 in Newlands, Ware, Hertfordshire, died on 6 Jun 1945 in HMS King Alfred, Hove. On Active Service. at age 56, and was buried in All Saints'
churchyard, Witham, Essex.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Commanding officer, HMS King Alfred in Hove, Brighton, East Sussex.

John married Rosalind Gatehouse, daughter of Richard George Gatehouse and Rose Stewart Lindsay Pelly, on 22 Jan 1924 in Bebington, Cheshire. Rosalind was born on 28 Mar 1892 in Birkenhead,
Cheshire and died on 9 Sep 1957 at age 65. They had two children: Rosemary Oenone and John Stewart Gatehouse.

7-Rosemary Oenone Pelly

Rosemary married Gordon Nelmes, son of Ernest Nelmes and Mary Black, on 18 Jul 1956 in Little Braxted, Witham, Essex. Gordon was born on 11 May 1926 in Sculcoates, Kingston upon Hull,
Yorkshire and died in Feb 1992 in Westminster, London at age 65. They had four children: John Pelly, Godfrey Edward, Rosalind Jane, and Edmund Gordon.

8-John Pelly Nelmes

John married Fiona Jane Nalder. They had three children: Flora Mary, Emma Rosemary, and Elizabeth Margaret.
9-Flora Mary Nelmes
9-Emma Rosemary Nelmes

9-Elizabeth Margaret Nelmes
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8-Godfrey Edward Nelmes
Godfrey married Judith Oliver, daughter of Norman. They had two children: Oliver Noel Ernest and Luke Godfrey Nicholas.

9-Oliver Noel Ernest Nelmes
9-Luke Godfrey Nicholas Nelmes

8-Rosalind Jane Nelmes

Rosalind married Charles Richard Maurice Bishop, son of Brig. Richard John Bishop and Jane Margaret Chilton. They had three children: Rosanna Emily Margaret, Thomas Richard Chilton,
and Victoria Great Oenone Jane.

9-Rosanna Emily Margaret Bishop
9-Thomas Richard Chilton Bishop
9-Victoria Great Oenone Jane Bishop

8-Edmund Gordon Nelmes
Edmund married Rebecca Stephenson, daughter of John Stephenson.

7-John Stewart Gatehouse Pelly* was born on 10 Dec 1930 in Devonport and died on 10 Apr 2004 in Sudbury, Suffolk at age 73.
John married Helen Josephine Hirst, daughter of Denys H. Hirst. They had five children: Sarah Elizabeth, Jennifer Oenone, Catherine Alison, Rosemary Helen, and Isobel Serena.

8-Sarah Elizabeth Pelly was born in 1963 and died in 1963.
8-Jennifer Oenone Pelly

8-Catherine Alison Pelly

8-Rosemary Helen Pelly

8-1sobel Serena Pelly

6-Lt. Col. Edmund Godfrey Pelly*® was born on 10 Oct 1889 in Newlands, Ware, Hertfordshire, died on 28 Oct 1939 in London at age 50, and was buried in All Saints' churchyard, Witham, Essex.

General Notes: 2nd Lieutenant, DSO, MC. Born 19.10.1889, 2nd son of Edmund Neville Richard Pelly and Emma Mary Pelly, husband of Isabel Amy Pelly née Fowler. He was at Charterhouse [W] 1903 -
1907. In the Great War he served in the RASC, being mentioned in despatches four times, earning the DSO and the MC, and attaining the rank of Lieutenant-Colonel. He rejoined the RASC in 1939 but died
in London on 28.10.39, aged 50, of illness contracted while serving with the BEF. His younger brother (g.v.) was killed in the Dardanelles in 1915, and his elder brother Captain John Noel Pelly, CBE, RN,
commanding officer of the training establishment HMS King Alfred, died suddenly in June 1945. The two older brothers lie buried in a joint grave in the north-western corner of All Saints' churchyard,
Witham, Essex.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with DSO MC.

» Miscellaneous: He died of illness contracted whilst serving with the BEF.

Edmund married Isabel Amy Fowler, daughter of Robert Henry Fowler® and Amy Isabel Ayres, on 24 May 1919 in London. Isabel was born on 17 Oct 1893 in London and died in 1988 at age 95. They
had two children: Antoinette Joan and Robert Hubert.
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Noted events in her life were:
 She was educated at The Mount School in Sep 1908-Aug 1911 in York, Yorkshire.

7-Antoinette Joan Pelly was born on 21 Apr 1920 in London and died in 1997 at age 77.

Antoinette married Kenneth William MacLeod, son of Ebenezer Duncan MacLeod and Alice Dalrymple Cooper, on 22 Jul 1942 in London. Kenneth was born on 6 Oct 1907 in London and died in
1983 at age 76. They had three children: Alison Ann, Neil Godfrey, and Flora Margaret.

8-Alison Ann MacLeod
Alison married Robert Hellett, son of Henry Hellett. They had one son: Robert Henry.

9-Robert Henry Hellett
Alison next married Geoffrey Hugh Fellows.

8-Neil Godfrey MacLeod
Neil married Sheila Anne Tyler. They had four children: Steven Kenneth, Amy, Diana, and Jeffrey.

9-Steven Kenneth MacLeod
9-Amy MacLeod

9-Diana MacLeod

9-Jeffrey MacLeod

8-Flora Margaret MacLeod
Flora married Graham Gilbert. They had two children: Kris Graham and Rory Neil.

9-Kris Graham Gilbert
9-Rory Neil Gilbert

7-Robert Hubert Pelly was born on 17 Aug 1923 in London, died on 24 Jan 2016 at age 92, and was buried in Apr 2016 in Leathley, Yorkshire.

Robert married Eirolys Elizabeth Horton-Fawkes, daughter of Maj. Le Gendre George William Horton-Fawkes and Sylvia Louise Mabel Edina Duckworth, on 17 Feb 1951 in Otley, Yorkshire.
Eirolys was born on 13 Mar 1928 in Orchardleigh Park, Frome and died on 22 Aug 2009 at age 81. They had three children: Serena Louise, Richard Fowler, and Robert Simon Horton.

8-Serena Louise Pelly
Serena married Stephen John Richards. They had two children: Clare Lucy and Thomas Linton.

9-Clare Lucy Richards

9-Thomas Linton Richards
Serena next married Michael Stevenson.

8-Richard Fowler Pelly
Richard married Michelle Colette Bouteille, daughter of Dr. Henri Bouteille. They had three children: Isabelle, Victoria Sarah, and Mathilde.

9-lsabelle Pelly
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9-Victoria Sarah Pelly
9-Mathilde Pelly

8-Robert Simon Horton Pelly
Robert married Rachel M. Hamilton-Ely, daughter of Peter Hamilton-Ely. They had three children: Camilla, Hugh, and Rupert.

9-Camilla Pelly
9-Hugh Pelly
9-Rupert Pelly

6-Cicely Edith Pelly*® was born on 16 Jun 1891 in Newlands, Ware, Hertfordshire, was christened on 24 Jul 1891 in Stanstead Abbots, Hertfordshire, and died on 7 Jan 1969 at age 77. She had no known
marriage and no known children.

Noted events in her life were:

 She was awarded with JP for Essex.

6-Lieut. Hubert Richard Pelly*® was born on 7 Sep 1895 in Newlands, Ware, Hertfordshire and died on 9 Oct 1915 in Gallipoli, Turkey. Killed in action at age 20.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as an officer of the 7th Battalion, the Essex Regiment.
6-Cmdr. Denis Edward Pelly*® was born on 16 Feb 1898 in Twyord House, Bishops Stortford, Hertfordshire and died on 10 Jul 1970 at age 72.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as an officer of The Royal Navy.

Denis married Grace Olympia Laurence, daughter of Percy Edward Laurence and Mary Leigh, on 30 Dec 1925 in London. Grace died on 27 Jan 1951 in Ipswich, Suffolk. They had no children.
Denis next married Margaret Mary Turnbull on 19 Sep 1951 in London. Margaret was born on 4 Aug 1909 and died on 26 Aug 1999 at age 90. They had no children.

5-Emma Marion (Maria) Pelly®® was born in 1852 and died on 22 Oct 1924 in Cromer, Norfolk at age 72.

General Notes: In accordance with a wish expressed by Mrs Buxton, the service was made as bright as

possible. There was no tolling of the church bell, and no intoning by the clergy, whilst

instead of the "Dead March" the organist played by special request of the family the

"Hallelujah Chorus" from Handel's "Messiah™. There was no choir, and it was the wish

of Mrs Buxton that the hymns chosen for the service should be heartily sung by the

congregation... The clergy taking part were the Revs. Leonard and Arthur Buxton

(sons), the Rev. E. L. McClintock (son-in-law), the Rev. Barclay F. Buxton (brother-in-law), the Rev. Canon R. A. Pelly (brother), Canon E. S. Woods [husband of her niece],
Canon Harford [brother-in-law], the Revs. D. B. Barclay and G. A. Barclay [nephews],

and the Rev. G. F. Grace (vicar of Stanstead Abbots.)

Emma married John Henry Buxton,*®2 son of Thomas Fowell Buxton®®#® and Rachel Jane Gurney,*® on 19 Nov 1874. John was born on 15 Aug 1849 and died on 21 Mar 1934 in Easneye, Ware,
Hertfordshire at age 84. They had seven children: Henry Fowell, Leonard, Andrew Richard, Dorothy Rachel, Arthur, Margaret Katharine, and Lilian Rosamond.

Marriage Notes: Are they buried at St. James's, Stanstead Abbots, Hertfordshire?

Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in Easneye, Ware, Hertfordshire.
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6-Capt. Henry Fowell Buxton3® was born on 23 Jan 1876 and died on 16 Jan 1949 at age 72.
General Notes: He gained the rank of Captain in the service of the 4th Battalion, Suffolk Regiment. He fought in the First World War. He was a director of Truman, Hanbury, Buxton & Company. He held the
office of High Sheriff of Hertfordshire in 1938
Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Director of Truman Hanbury Buxton, Brewers.
* He resided at Smoo Lodge in Durness, Sutherland.
* He resided at Easeneye in Ware, Hertfordshire.
Henry married Katharine Tayspel Round,% daughter of Rt. Hon. James Round and Sybilla Joanna Freeland, on 24 Jul 1900. Katharine was born in 1881 and died on 4 Jul 1945 at age 64. They had five
children: John Fowell, Robert James, Joseph Gurney Fowell, Michael Auriol, and Henry Adrian.
7-Maj. John Fowell Buxton®® was born on 21 Jun 1902 and died on 27 Mar 1970 at age 67.

General Notes: John Fowell Buxton was educated at Harrow School, Harrow on the Hill, London, England. He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England,
in 1924 with a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.) ). He lived at Sawbridge, Hertfordshire, England. He was decorated with the award of Territorial Decoration (T.D.). He gained the rank of Major in the service of the
86th (Hertfordshire Yeomanry) Field Regiment, Royal Artillery (Territorial Army). He became a Master in 1946, Brewers' Company. He was a director of Truman's Brewery. He held the office of High
Sheriff of Hertfordshire in 1958

Noted events in his life were:
* He was educated at Harrow.
» He worked as a Director of Truman's Brewery.

John married Katherine Mary Bacon,® daughter of Sir Nicholas Henry Bacon 12th & 13th Bt.*¢ and Constance Alice Leslie-Melville, on 22 Jul 1930. Katherine was born on 15 Jul 1906 and died on
17 Aug 2000 at age 94. They had six children: Bridget Jane, Anna Katharine, Henry Alexander Fowell, Penelope Mary Albinia, Elizabeth Priscilla, and Teresa Constance.

8-Bridget Jane Buxton?® was born on 13 Aug 1931 and died on 17 Oct 2018 at age 87.

Bridget married Hon. Reuben Pleydell-Bouverie,*® son of William Pleydell-Bouverie 7th Earl Of Radnor® and Helena Olivia Adeane, on 28 Jan 1956. Reuben was born on 30 Dec 1930 and died
on 19 Aug 2020 at age 89. They had three children: Edward, Rosalind Mary, and Jasper.

9-Edward Pleydell-Bouverie
9-Rosalind Mary Pleydell-Bouverie

9-Jasper Pleydell-Bouverie
Jasper married Katherine Jane Pelly, daughter of Richard Christopher Wordsworth Pelly and Ruth Elinor Askey. They had three children: Josiah, Rufus, and Honor Phoebe C.

10-Josiah Pleydell-Bouverie
10-Rufus Pleydell-Bouverie
10-Honor Phoebe C. Pleydell-Bouverie

8-Anna Katharine Buxton
Anna married George Watkin Myrddin-Evans, son of Sir Guildhaume Myrddin-Evans. They had one son: David Guildhaume.

9-David Guildhaume Myrddin-Evans

8-Henry Alexander Fowell Buxton
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Henry married Victoria Bennett, daughter of Edward John Ronald Bennett and Rachel Constance Bazley. They had three children: Nicholas Fowell, Anthony John, and Katharine Louise.

9-Nicholas Fowell Buxton

Nicholas married Henrietta Louise Jewson, daughter of Richard Wilson Jewson. They had four children: Edward Arthur Fowell, Thomas Archie, Hugh Henry, and George William.
10-Edward Arthur Fowell Buxton
10-Thomas Archie Buxton
10-Hugh Henry Buxton
10-George William Buxton

9-Anthony John Buxton
Anthony married Lara Fleming. They had three children: Archie David, Oscar Henry, and Minda Rachel.

10-Archie David Buxton
10-Oscar Henry Buxton
10-Minda Rachel Buxton

9-Katharine Louise Buxton
Katharine married Edward Beckwith. They had two children: Emily Charlotte and Henry William M.

10-Emily Charlotte Beckwith
10-Henry William M. Beckwith

8-Penelope Mary Albinia Buxton
Penelope married Richard Christopher Naylor, son of Thomas Humphrey Naylor and Dorothy Isabel Durning. They had two children: Thomas Murray and Harriet Albinia.

9-Thomas Murray Naylor
9-Harriet Albinia Naylor

8-Elizabeth Priscilla Buxton
Elizabeth married Maj. Thomas Tudor Riversdale Lort-Phillips. They had three children: Frances Katherine, Anna Elizabeth, and Hugh Thomas.

9-Frances Katherine Lort-Phillips
Frances married Stephen Dawson. They had three children: Erin Katherine, Beth Annie, and Thomas Samuel.

10-Erin Katherine Dawson
10-Beth Annie Dawson
10-Thomas Samuel Dawson

9-Anna Elizabeth Lort-Phillips
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Anna married Giles Morland Adams. They had two children: Xanthe Teresa and Thalia Katharine.
10-Xanthe Teresa Adams
10-Thalia Katharine Adams
9-Hugh Thomas Lort-Phillips
8-Teresa Constance Buxton

7-Dr. Robert James Buxton®® was born on 29 Apr 1908 and died on 5 Jun 1968 at age 60.

General Notes: Major Robert James Buxton was educated at Harrow School, Harrow on the Hill, London, England. He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire,
England, in 1929 with a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1934 with a Master of Arts (M.A.). He graduated from
Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, with a Bachelor of Medicine (M.B.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire,
England, in 1937 with a Bachelor of Surgery (B.Ch.). He graduated with a Diploma in Opthalmic Medicine and Surgery (D.O.M.S.). He gained the rank of Major in 1942 in the service of the Royal Army

Medical Corps. He was registered as a Member, Royal College of Surgeons (M.R.C.S.). He was registered as a Licentiate, Royal College of Physicians, London (L.R.C.P.).He lived at Gallhampton Manor,
North Cadbury, Yeovil, Somerset, England.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Opthalmic Surgeon.

Robert married Lilla Mary Alyson Pumphrey,34° daughter of Charles Ernest Pumphrey®4%%3 and Iris Mary Bell, on 12 Jun 1935 in Bywell, St Peters, Northumberland. Lilla was
born on 8 Apr 1914 in Greenside, Ryton on Tyne, County Durham and died in 1979 at age 65. They had six children: Victoria Mary Rose, Lavinia Hermione, Lettice Katharine, James Anthony Fowell,
Rosamond Mary Alyson, and Richard Moberly.

8-Victoria Mary Rose Buxton

Victoria married Maj. David James Faulkner,®® son of Lt. Col. Walter Douglas Faulkner and Patricia Katharine Montagu-Douglas-Scott, on 26 Apr 1958 in Cadbury, Tiverton, Devon. David was
born on 8 Nov 1932 and died in 1993 at age 61. They had five children: John Douglas, Katharine Rose, Thomas Patrick, Matthew James, and Robert David.

9-John Douglas Faulkner

9-Katharine Rose Faulkner
9-Thomas Patrick Faulkner
9-Matthew James Faulkner

9-Robert David Faulkner
Victoria next married Maj. Gen. Reginald Henry Whitworth, son of Aylmer William Whitworth and Alice Lucy Patience Hervey.

8-Lavinia Hermione Buxton

Lavinia married Rt. Hon. (Mr Justice) Sir Mathew Alexander Thorpe, son of Michael Alexander Thorpe and Dorothea Margaret Lambert. They had three children: Gervase James Doncaster,
Alexander Lambert, and Marcus Somerled.

9-Gervase James Doncaster Thorpe was born on 12 Oct 1967 and died in Apr 2008 at age 40.
9-Alexander Lambert Thorpe

9-Marcus Somerled Thorpe
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8-Lettice Katharine Buxton

8-James Anthony Fowell Buxton

James married Margaret Elizabeth Russell, daughter of Admiral Hon. Sir Guy Herbrand Edward Russell®® and Hon. Helen Elizabeth Blades. They had four children: Harriet Faith Alyson,
Edward Guy Fowell, Meriel Lavinia Margaret, and Charles Robert James.

9-Harriet Faith Alyson Buxton
9-Edward Guy Fowell Buxton
9-Meriel Lavinia Margaret Buxton
9-Charles Robert James Buxton

8-Rosamond Mary Alyson Buxton
Rosamond married Ven. Anthony C. Foottit. They had three children: James Hugh Percival, Caroline Mary Alyson, and Georgina Rose.

9-James Hugh Percival Foottit
9-Caroline Mary Alyson Foottit
9-Georgina Rose Foottit

8-Richard Moberly Buxton

Richard married Julia Grace Elcock, daughter of Commodore Frank Dudley Elcock and Mary Grace Pitfield. They had three children: David Mark Reford, Simon Cosmo Robert, and Elinor
Grace Alyson.

9-David Mark Reford Buxton
9-Simon Cosmo Robert Buxton
9-Elinor Grace Alyson Buxton

7-Capt. Joseph Gurney Fowell Buxton®®>* was born on 5 Jul 1913 and died in May 1943 in Killed In Action Tunisia at age 29.
Joseph married Elizabeth Langley Barbour, daughter of Maj. Robert Barbour. They had three children: Andrew Robert Fowell, Meriel Rose, and Joseph William Henry.

8-Andrew Robert Fowell Buxton

Andrew married Jane Margery Grant, daughter of Lt. Col. John Peter Grant 15th Of Rothiemurchus and Lady Katherine Greaves Countess of Dysart, on 1 May 1965. Jane was born on 2 Feb
1943 and died on 13 Jun 2015 at age 72. They had two children: Tessa Rose and Veronica Mary.

9-Tessa Rose Buxton
Tessa married Athanassios Deriziotis, son of Eustache Deriziotis.

9-Veronica Mary Buxton
Veronica married Andrew Michael Kemp Barlow, son of Sir John Kemp Barlow 3rd Bt. and Susan Horsbrugh-Porter. They had three children: Cordelia, Lucia, and Edward.

10-Cordelia Barlow

10-Lucia Barlow
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10-Edward Barlow

8-Meriel Rose Buxton

Meriel married Robert Ivan Kenyon-Slaney, son of Maj. Robert Orlando Rodolph Kenyon-Slaney and Lady Mary Cecilia Rhodesia Hamilton, on 7 Jan 1964. Robert was born in 1926 and died
on 31 Jan 1984 at age 58. They had three children: Rupert David, Thomas Alexander, and Natasha Vivien.

9-Rupert David Kenyon-Slaney
Rupert married Christina Macmillan. They had three children: Robert Duncan Thomas, Orlando William Percy, and Caspian John Aglionby.

10-Robert Duncan Thomas Kenyon-Slaney

10-Orlando William Percy Kenyon-Slaney

10-Caspian John Aglionby Kenyon-Slaney
9-Thomas Alexander Kenyon-Slaney

9-Natasha Vivien Kenyon-Slaney
Natasha married Barnabas Martin Henry Branston. They had one son: Oliver Robin Kenyon.

10-Oliver Robin Kenyon Branston
Meriel next married Peter Maurice Afia.

8-Capt. Joseph William Henry Buxton
Joseph married Sarah Louise Smyly,® daughter of Lt. Col. Richard Patrick Pilkington Smyly, in 1972. Sarah died in 1974.
Joseph next married Ann Boggis-Rolfe, daughter of Paul Boggis-Rolfe. They had three children: William Paul, Robert, and Laura Elizabeth Verena.

9-William Paul Buxton
9-Robert Buxton
9-Laura Elizabeth Verena Buxton

7-Lt. Cmdr. Michael Auriol Buxton®® was born on 4 Sep 1914 and died in 1990 at age 76.
General Notes: High Sheriff of Rutland

Michael married Elizabeth Edith Millicent Elwes,*® daughter of Capt. Robert Hamond Arthur Elwes® and Esterel Edith Philippa Louise Tillard, on 5 Feb 1938. Elizabeth was born on 14 Jun 1916
and died on 30 Dec 2003 at age 87. They had four children: Gervase Michael, Christopher Robert, Jonathon James, and Charles Joseph.

8-Gervase Michael Buxton
Gervase married Susan Margaret McKenzie, daughter of Kenneth Malcolm McKenzie. They had four children: Lucy Jane, Matthew Thomas Gervase, Caragh Susan, and Jocelyn David.

9-Lucy Jane Buxton
9-Matthew Thomas Gervase Buxton
9-Caragh Susan Buxton

9-Jocelyn David Buxton
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8-Christopher Robert Buxton was born on 1 Oct 1940 and died on 3 Jan 2021 at age 80.
Christopher married Judy Frances Dixon, daughter of Gordon Hollingsworth Dixon. They had two children: Timothy James and Richard Antony.

9-Timothy James Buxton
Timothy married Rachel Jane Haldane, daughter of James Martin Haldane 26th Of Gleneagles and Petronella Victoria Scarlett. They had one daughter: Matilda Scarlett.

10-Matilda Scarlett Buxton

9-Richard Antony Buxton
Richard married Anna-Louise Reilly, daughter of Brian Reilly. They had two children: Dan and Lara Rose.

10-Dan Buxton

10-Lara Rose Buxton
Christopher next married Priscilla Gardner, daughter of Maj. John Gardner. They had three children: Alexandra Mary, Edward Robert, and Thomas Michael.

9-Alexandra Mary Buxton
9-Edward Robert Buxton
9-Thomas Michael Buxton

8-Maj. Jonathon James Buxton

Jonathon married Rosaleen Pleasance Bagge, daughter of Sir John Alfred Picton Bagge 6th Bt. and Elizabeth Helena Davies. They had three children: Georgina Elizabeth, Victoria Rose, and
Rosaleen Poppy.

9-Georgina Elizabeth Buxton

9-Victoria Rose Buxton
Victoria married Thomas Paton-Smith, son of Jonathan Paton-Smith. They had three children: Max Jonathan, Guy Oliver, and Emilia Rose.

10-Max Jonathan Paton-Smith
10-Guy Oliver Paton-Smith
10-Emilia Rose Paton-Smith

9-Rosaleen Poppy Buxton
Rosaleen married Patrick A. G. Dent, son of Alan Dent. They had one son: Ethan Jonathan Alan.

10-Ethan Jonathan Alan Dent

8-Lt. Col. Charles Joseph Buxton
Charles married Veronica Juliet Mary Paterson-Morgan, daughter of Francis David Paterson-Morgan. They had three children: Leonie Carinna Rose, Katriona Topaz Mary, and Sophie.

9-Leonie Carinna Rose Buxton

9-Katriona Topaz Mary Buxton
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9-Sophie Buxton
7-Henry Adrian Buxton was born on 27 Apr 1916 in Bishop's Stortford, Hertfordshire and died in 1970 in Colchester, Essex at age 54.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at Chillon College, Switzerland.
Henry next married Mairi Milne,% daughter of James Milne, on 25 Aug 1945. Mairi died on 29 Jul 1962.

6-Rev. Leonard Buxton®® was born on 10 Oct 1877 in Southampton, Hampshire and died on 7 Jan 1946 at age 68.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at Charterhouse & Cambridge. BA. MA.
» He worked as a Vicar of North Mymms.

Leonard married Kathleen Wingfield-Digby, daughter of Capt. John Digby Wingfield-Digby and Maria Madan, on 27 Jul 1903. Kathleen was born in 1870 and died on 24 Mar 1958 at age 88. They had
six children: Kathleen Hannah, Ruth Lydia, Edmund Digby, Kenneth Leonard, Daniel Richard, and Digby Hugh.

7-Kathleen Hannah Buxton was born on 6 Nov 1905 and died on 14 Aug 1999 at age 93.

7-Ruth Lydia Buxton was born on 2 Oct 1906.
Ruth married John Willoughby Harris. They had two children: Elizabeth Hannah and Patrick John.

8-Elizabeth Hannah Harris
Elizabeth married Alfred Rudolph Berd Ehrhardt.
Elizabeth next married Frank Marlow.

8-Patrick John Harris
Patrick married Diana Harkness.

7-Rev. Edmund Digby Buxton was born on 1 Mar 1908 and died on 23 Nov 2001 at age 93.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Vicar of St Mary's Peckham 1939 To 1944.
Edmund married Katharine Monsarrat Hargreaves, daughter of John Arthur Hargreaves. They had four children: Edmund Francis, Mary Ethel, Lucy Jane, and Antony Leonard.

8-Rev. Edmund Francis Buxton
Edmund married Jane Mary Jones, daughter of Rev. Leslie Arthur Jones. They had three children: Nicholas Andrew, Thomas Mark, and Asha Theresa.

9-Nicholas Andrew Buxton
9-Thomas Mark Buxton
9-Asha Theresa Buxton

8-Mary Ethel Buxton
Mary married David James Grundy. They had two children: Katharine Mary and Joanna Lucy.
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9-Katharine Mary Grundy
9-Joanna Lucy Grundy
8-Lucy Jane Buxton

8-Antony Leonard Buxton

Antony married Heather Morwenna Marie Osborne, daughter of Surgeon Rear Admiral Leslie B. Osborne. They had one daughter: Laura Rose.

9-Laura Rose Buxton

7-Dr. Kenneth Leonard Buxton was born on 19 Jul 1909 and died in Nov 2001 at age 92.

General Notes: Kenneth Leonard Buxton was educated at Charterhouse School, Godalming, Surrey, England.He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire,
England, in 1930 with a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.).1 He graduated with a Bachelor of Surgery (B.Ch.). He graduated with a Bachelor of Medicine (M.B.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge
University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1935 with a Master of Arts (M.A.). He was the Medical Superintendent and Consultant at Mildmay Mission Hospital, London, England. He was
registered as a Licentiate, Royal College of Physicians, London (L.R.C.P.).1 He was invested as a Fellow, Royal College of Surgeons (F.R.C.S.).

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with FRCS LRCP DTM & H MB BCh.
» He worked as a Medical Superintendent and Consultant in Mildmay Mission Hospital, London.

Kenneth married Agnes Josephine Bragg, daughter of Rev. Dr. Tom Bragg and Grace Josephine Wakefield, in 1935 in Marylebone. Agnes was born on 18 Dec 1907 and died in Jan 1999 in Berkshire
at age 91. They had four children: Paul Kenneth, Andrew Wakefield, Angela Josephine, and Susanna Rachel.

8-Dr. Paul Kenneth Buxton

Paul married Heather Clive Edlmann, daughter of Lt. Col. Joseph Campbell Edimann. They had two children: Jonathan Charles Fowell and Joanna Rachel.

9-Jonathan Charles Fowell Buxton
Jonathan married Victoria Bottom, daughter of Seth Bottom. They had two children: Thaddeus Alexander Wolf and Ottillie Ines Rose.

10-Thaddeus Alexander Wolf Buxton
10-Ottillie Ines Rose Buxton

9-Joanna Rachel Buxton
Joanna married Lt. Col. Francis Hobbs.

8-Andrew Wakefield Buxton was born on 31 Jan 1939, died on 14 Jan 2006 at age 66, and was buried on 28 Jan 2006.

8-Angela Josephine Buxton
Angela married Simon Christopher Edward Kendall. They had three children: Benjamin Edward Buxton, Matthew Simon Digby, and Andrew Christopher Barclay.

9-Benjamin Edward Buxton Kendall
9-Matthew Simon Digby Kendall
9-Andrew Christopher Barclay Kendall

8-Susanna Rachel Buxton
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Susanna married Terry Hookway.

7-Daniel Richard Buxton was born on 4 Mar 1913 and died in 2003 at age 90.
Daniel married Josephine Blake Burdekin, daughter of Hugh Burdekin. They had two children: Timothy Richard Blake and David Adrian Leonard.

8-Timothy Richard Blake Buxton

Timothy married Juliet Gaye Jex-Blake, daughter of Charles William Laurence Jex-Blake. They had two children: Darren Richard Blake and Shane Laurence Blake.
9-Darren Richard Blake Buxton

9-Shane Laurence Blake Buxton
Shane married Regina Yuet Mei, daughter of Yuen Song Wong. They had three children: Blake Mark Chee Meng, Jaeden Laurence Chee Kan, and Melissa Lae Wai Yee.

10-Blake Mark Chee Meng Buxton
10-Jaeden Laurence Chee Kan Buxton
10-Melissa Lae Wai Yee Buxton

8-David Adrian Leonard Buxton

David married Lynley Anne O'connor, daughter of John O’connor and Gladys Helen Lister. They had three children: Adrian David, Bruce John, and Greig Daniel.
9-Adrian David Buxton
9-Bruce John Buxton
9-Greig Daniel Buxton

7-Rev. Digby Hugh Buxton was born on 27 Jan 1916 and died on 9 Nov 1997 at age 81. He had no known marriage and no known children.

General Notes: Reverend Digby Hugh Buxton was educated at Stowe School, Buckingham, Buckinghamshire, England. He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge,
Cambridgeshire, England, in 1938 with a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1941 with a Master of Arts (M.A.).
Between 1946 and 1950 at All Saints', Queensbury, Edgware, Middlesex, England, the Curate. He was the Curate in 1950 at St. Mary's Church, St. Johns, New Brunswick, Canada. He was the Rector
between 1952 and 1954 at Hantsport, Nova Scotia, Canada. He was the Priest-in-charge between 1954 and 1964 at Lake St. John Mission, Quebec, Canada. He was the Priest-in-charge between 1954 and
1964 at Saguenay Mission, Quebec, Canada. He was the Rector in 1964 at St. Barnabas Church, North hatley, Quebec, Canada.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Curate All Saints', Queensbury 1946 To 1950 in Edgware, London.

6-Capt. Andrew Richard Buxton®? was born on 19 Aug 1879, died on 7 Jun 1917 in Battle of Messines. Belgium. In Action. at age 37, and was buried in Oosttaverne Wood Cemetery, Heuvelland, West-
Vlaanderen, Belgium.

General Notes: CAPTAIN A. R. BUXTON

Rifle Brigade

Elmfield 93-97 Aged 37 June 7th, 1917

Third son of John Henry Buxton, of Easneye, Herts, and of Mrs. Buxton.

Trinity College, Cambridge. Local Director of Messrs. Barclays Bank,

Victoria Street, S.W. Was a successful trainer of Labrador Retrievers, winning, with Hunsdon Zulu, in 1910, the Championship in the International Gun-dog League Retriever Trials.

When the War broke out Captain Buxton enlisted in the Public Schools Battalion, and in January, 1915, he was given a Commission in the Rifle Brigade and went out to France in the following July. His
Battalion was in the salient of Ypres, and all through the winter he had many narrow escapes. In August, 1916, he led his Company into action at Guillemont. His health then broke down, and after a spell in a
rest camp he was attached as a 'staff learner' to a Brigade Headquarters. He was, however, always anxious to return to his Battalion, and this he succeeded in doing, but only a few days before his death. He
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was killed in action during the first day of the Battle of Messines on June 7th, 1917. Lieut.-Colonel Pigot, D.S.O., M.C., commanding his Battalion, wrote: " He was just coming back from the front line after
an attack yesterday when he was hit by a bullet and died almost at once. | can't tell you how much I deplore his loss. He had been with us a long time and on ever so many occasions had shown himself a very

brave man. Everyone loved him, and all the men of his Company will, I know, regret his loss. He was always doing his best to make his men comfortable, and | can assure you he will be a very great loss to us
all."

Buxton, Andrew Richard Born Aug. 19, 1879, in London. 3rd son of John Henry Buxton (1866), of Easneye, Hunsdon Bury, Ware, Herts. Brother of Henry F. (1894). Harrow School. Admitted as
pensioner at Trinity, June 25, 1898. Matric. Michs. 1898; BA 1901. Local Director of Barclay and Co., bankers, Westminster Branch, 1909-14. Enlisted as a private in the Public Schools and University

Battalion, Royal Fusiliers, 1914; Captain, 6th Battalion (attached 3rd Battalion Rifle Brigade). Killed in action, June 7, 1917, near Oosttaverne, at the battle of Messines. (Memoir by Edward S. Woods, MA,
CF

College Cambridge Chapel. Roll of Honour WWI.

Noted events in his life were:

* He was educated at Harrow.

» He was educated at Trinity College, Cambridge in 1898-1901.

» He worked as a Local Director, Barclays Bank in Victoria Street, London.
» He worked as an Officer of the 3rd Rifle Brigade.

6-Dorothy Rachel Buxton was born in 1880 and died in 1972 at age 92.

Dorothy married Sir Arthur Grey Hazlerigg 1st Baron Hazlerigg, son of Lt. Col. Arthur Grey Hazlerigg and Janet Edith Orr-Ewing, on 14 Jul 1903. Arthur was born on 17 Nov 1878 and died on 25
May 1949 at age 70. They had six children: Rachel Elizabeth, Dorothy Joan, Edith Bridget, Arthur Grey, Thomas Heron, and Robert Maynard.

General Notes: 13th Bt.

7-Hon. Rachel Elizabeth Hazlerigg was born on 22 Jul 1904 and died in 1989 at age 85.
Rachel married Lt. Col. Anthony Charles Ward Kimpton. They had four children: Rosamond Mary, Anthony Andrew Ward, Diana Rachel, and Patricia Hazel.

8-Rosamond Mary Kimpton
Rosamond married Neil McLay Mills. They had four children: Jemima Rachel McLay, Mark Oliver McLay, Rosamond Cornelia McLay, and Titus Neil Archibald McLay.

9-Jemima Rachel McLay Mills
Jemima married Edward George Trotter, son of Lt. Col. George Richard Trotter and Lady Marioth Christina Hay.

9-Rev. Mark Oliver McLay Mills
Mark married Dana Powell. They had three children: Bridget, Phoebe, and Rachel.

10-Bridget Mills-Powell
10-Phoebe Mills-Powell
10-Rachel Mills-Powell

9-Rosamond Cornelia McLay Mills

Rosamond married Peveril John Bruce, son of Lt. Cmdr. Henry Victor Bruce and Helen Vernon Wallop William-Powlett. They had three children: Otto Feilden, Finn Cardigan, and Todd
Heron.

10-Otto Feilden Bruce

10-Finn Cardigan Bruce
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10-Todd Heron Bruce

9-Titus Neil Archibald McLay Mills

Titus married Jemima Dyson. They had one son: Malachi Dyson Buxton.

10-Malachi Dyson Buxton Mills

8-Anthony Andrew Ward Kimpton was born on 15 Jul 1931 and died in 1989 at age 58.
Anthony married Kathleen Margaret Sinnott. They had two children: Emily Melissa and Archibald James Sinnott.

9-Emily Melissa Kimpton
Emily married Thomas David Bradwall Barlow, son of Sir John Kemp Barlow 3rd Bt. and Susan Horsbrugh-Porter.

9-Archibald James Sinnott Kimpton

8-Diana Rachel Kimpton

Diana married Rev. John Theodore Cameron Bucke Collins. They had two children: Andrew Dominic John Bucke Collins and Richenda Rachel.

9-Andrew Dominic John Bucke Collins Collins

9-Richenda Rachel Collins

Richenda married Sir Richard Herbert Paget 4th Bt., son of Sir John Starr Paget 3rd Bt. and Nancy Mary Parish. They had three children: Emma Rachel, Richenda Elizabeth, and Camilla
Mary.

10-Emma Rachel Paget
10-Richenda Elizabeth Paget

10-Camilla Mary Paget

8-Patricia Hazel Kimpton was born on 9 Jan 1940 and died on 5 May 1965 at age 25. She had no known marriage and no known children.

7-Hon. Dorothy Joan Hazlerigg was born on 29 Aug 1905 and died on 10 Nov 1962 at age 57.

Dorothy married James Nathaniel Bosanquet Alexander, son of Maj. Edward Bruce Alexander and Mabel Eleanor Bosanquet, on 25 Oct 1930. James was born on 3 Aug 1902 and died on 21 Mar
1955 at age 52. They had three children: Carolyn Bridget, Joanna Mary, and James Arthur Francis.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a Director of Stewarts and Lloyds Ltd.

8-Carolyn Bridget Alexander
Carolyn married Richard John Cheney, son of Brig. John Norman Cheney. They had three children: (No Given Name), (No Given Name), and (No Given Name).

9-Cheney
9-Cheney

9-Cheney
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8-Joanna Mary Alexander

Joanna married John Collingwood-Anstey. They had two children: Harold and Alexander.
9-Harold Collingwood-Anstey
9-Alexander Collingwood-Anstey

8-James Arthur Francis Alexander
James married Marguerite Mary Holland. They had two children: Rachel Martha and Chloe Beatrice.

9-Rachel Martha Alexander
9-Chloe Beatrice Alexander
7-Hon. Edith Bridget Hazlerigg was born on 30 Mar 1908.

7-Sir Arthur Grey Hazlerigg 2nd Baron Hazlerigg was born on 24 Feb 1910 and died on 30 Sep 2002 at age 92.
General Notes: 14th Bt.

Arthur married Patricia Pullar, daughter of John Pullar, on 19 Sep 1945. Patricia died on 29 Apr 1972. They had three children: Angela Christine, Arthur Grey, and Priscilla Frances.

8-Hon. Angela Christine Hazlerigg

Angela married Capt. Timothy Effingham MacDowel, son of Horace St. George Stopford MacDowel and Josephine Laurence Garton, on 31 May 1969. Timothy was born on 16 Feb 1945 and
died in 1978 at age 33. They had two children: Benjamin St. George and Richard Arthur.

9-Benjamin St. George MacDowel
Benjamin married Fiona Jane Forbes. They had one son: Robert Thomas.

10-Robert Thomas MacDowel

9-Richard Arthur MacDowel
Richard married Tara Lloyd Jones. They had one daughter: Isabella Poppy.

10-1sabella Poppy MacDowel

8-Sir Arthur Grey Hazlerigg 3rd Baron Hazlerigg

Arthur married Laura Dugdale, daughter of Sir William Stratford Dugdale 2nd Bt. and Lady Belinda Pleydell-Bouverie. They had six children: Arthur William Grey, Eliza Patricia, Amelia
Frances, Viola Camilla, (No Given Name), and (No Given Name).

9-Hon. Arthur William Grey Hazlerigg
9-Hon. Eliza Patricia Hazlerigg

9-Hon. Amelia Frances Hazlerigg
9-Hon. Viola Camilla Hazlerigg

9-Hon. Hazlerigg
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9-Hon. Hazlerigg

Arthur next married Shan Mclndoe, daughter of Alastair Ross MclIndoe.

8-Hon. Priscilla Frances Hazlerigg

Priscilla married Hon. Richard Arthur Louis Dillon, son of Lt. Col. Michael Eric Dillon 20th Viscount Dillon and Iréne Marie France Merandon Du Plessis, on 24 May 1975. Richard was born

on 23 Oct 1948 and died on 9 Oct 2014 at age 65. They had two children: Charlotte Frances and Thomas Arthur Lee.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a Fellow, Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers.
9-Charlotte Frances Dillon
9-Thomas Arthur Lee Dillon

7-Maj. Hon. Thomas Heron Hazlerigg was born on 17 Jan 1914 and died on 31 Jul 1998 at age 84.
Thomas married Audrey Cecil Bates. They had two children: Rupert Heron and Simon Martival.

8-Rupert Heron Hazlerigg

Rupert married Caroline Lavinia Fitzwilliams, daughter of John Burkinshaw Lloyd Fitzwilliams and Pamela Mia Beatrice Baldwin, in 1979. Caroline was born in 1944 and died on 5 Dec 2014 at

age 70. They had two children: Cecilia and Alexandra Frances.
9-Cecilia Hazlerigg
9-Alexandra Frances Hazlerigg

8-Maj. Simon Martival Hazlerigg

Simon married Caroline Margaret Mary Ahlberg. They had two children: Antonia Margot and Alice Olivia.
9-Antonia Margot Hazlerigg

9-Alice Olivia Hazlerigg

Alice married Paul Michael Beale. They had one daughter: Grace Cara Jane.

10-Grace Cara Jane Beale

Thomas next married Anne Frances Roden Buxton, daughter of Capt. Roden Henry Victor Buxton and Dorothy Alina St. John.

7-Maj. Hon. Robert Maynard Hazlerigg was born on 21 Jul 1916 and died on 12 Sep 1997 at age 81.
Robert married Rose Cox. They had two children: Rosemary Maynard and Gillian Henrietta Jean.

8-Rosemary Maynard Hazlerigg

Rosemary married Malcolm John George Connell, son of Frank James Connell. They had one daughter: Emma Aridue Henrietta.

9-Emma Aridue Henrietta Connell

8-Gillian Henrietta Jean Hazlerigg

Gillian married Maurice Bradley. They had two children: Robert William and Jessica Mary.
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9-Robert William Bradley
9-Jessica Mary Bradley

6-Rev. Arthur Buxton was born on 7 Aug 1882 and died on 6 Jan 1958 at age 75.

General Notes: Reverend Arthur Buxton was born on 7 August 1882.1 He was the son of John Henry Buxton and Emma Maria Pelly. He married Esme Caroline Pixley, daughter of Colonel Francis William
Pixley, on 14 January 1908. He died on 6 January 1958 at age 75.

Reverend Arthur Buxton was educated at Harrow School, Harrow on the Hill, London, England. He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1904 with
a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1908 with a Master of Arts (M.A.). He fought in the First World War.1 He was
the Rector between 1920 and 1936 at All Souls, Langham Place, Marylebone, London, England. He was the Rector at All Saints, Southport, Lancashire, England.

Arthur married Esme Caroline Pixley, daughter of Col. Francis William Pixley?® and Elizabeth Mary Simpson, on 14 Jan 1908 in Kensington, London. Esme was born in 1883 in Kensington, London.
They had four children: Nigel Arthur, Richenda Dorothy, Mary, and Priscilla Peronne.

7-Dr. Nigel Arthur Buxton® was born on 28 Jan 1909 and died on 15 Jun 1995 at age 86.

Noted events in his life were:
» He emigrated to Canada.

Nigel married Dr. EImira Mary Richli,>® daughter of Dr. William Richli and Christine, on 23 Mar 1948. Elmira was born on 13 Dec 1915 and died on 6 Mar 2001 at age 85. They had three children:
David Edson, John Arthur, and Louise Elizabeth.

Noted events in their marriage were:
» They were Seventh Day Adventists.

8-David Edson Buxton
David married Terri Snyder, daughter of Gerald Snyder. They had two children: Daniel Elliott and Douglas Edward.

9-Daniel Elliott Buxton
9-Douglas Edward Buxton

8-Dr. John Arthur Buxton
John married Susan Smith, daughter of Paul Smith. They had two children: Sara Ann and Ashley Elizabeth.

9-Sara Ann Buxton
Sara married Michael Joseph Matus.

9-Ashley Elizabeth Buxton
Ashley married Matthew Lyle Henderson.

8-Dr. Louise Elizabeth Buxton
Louise married Dr. Kimber Schneider. They had two children: Jonathan Karl and Richard Andrew.

9-Jonathan Karl Schneider
9-Richard Andrew Schneider

7-Richenda Dorothy Buxton?®°® was born on 30 Nov 1911, died on 24 Apr 1987 at age 75, and was buried in Pyecombe Churchyard, Pyecombe, West Sussex.
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Richenda married George Blaker Blaker,?85 son of Col. William Frederick Blaker®® and Helen Elizabeth Blaker,> on 1 Jun 1938. George was born on 30 Sep 1912 in Simla, Himachal Pradesh, India,
died on 28 Nov 2001 at age 89, and was buried in Pyecombe Churchyard, Pyecombe, West Sussex. They had one daughter: Richenda Jennifer.

General Notes: BLAKER, George Blaker

CMG 1963

Born Simla, India, 30 Sept. 1912; m 1938, Richenda Dorothy Buxton (d 1987); one d ; died 28 Nov. 2001

Under-Secretary, HM Treasury, 1955- 63, and Department of Education and Science, 1963- 71 retired

EDUCATION Eton; Trinity Coll., Cambridge

CAREER Private Sec. to Ministers of State in the Middle East, 1941- 43; Cabinet Office, 1943; Private Sec. to Sec. of War Cabinet, 1944; Principal Private Sec. to Minister of Production and
Presidents of the Board of Trade, 1945— 47; accompanied Cabinet Mission to India, 1946; Sec. of UK Trade Mission to China, 1946; HM Treasury, 1947; UK Treasury Representative in India, Ceylon and
Burma, 1957- 63. President: Surrey Trust for Nature Conservation, 1969- 80; Scientific and Medical Network, 1986— (Hon. Sec., 1973- 86). Gold Medal, Royal Soc. for the Protection of Birds, 1934
ADDRESS Lake House, Vann Lake Road, Ockley, Surrey, RH5 5NS

Noted events in his life were:

* He was awarded with CMG.

» He was educated at Eton.

» He was educated at Trinity College, Cambridge.

» He worked as an Under-Secretary, HM Treasury in 1955-1963.

» He worked as an Under-Secretary, Department of Education and Science in 1963-1971.

8-Richenda Jennifer Blaker
Richenda married Neil John Hancock.

7-Mary Buxton

7-Priscilla Peronne Buxton was born on 9 Sep 1916 and died in 1979 in Worthing, Sussex at age 63.
General Notes: Priscilla Peronne Buxton was Detachment Officer BRCS. She was Licentiate, Royal Academy of Music.

6-Margaret Katharine Buxton was born on 10 Sep 1885.
Margaret married Rev. Edward Louis Longfield McClintock, son of Lt. Col. Charles Edward McClintock.

6-Lilian Rosamond Buxton died on 19 Feb 1969.
5-Rev. Canon. Richard Arnold Pelly®® was born on 25 Dec 1856 in Plaistow, Essex and died on 2 Dec 1949 in Hatfield Peverell, Essex at age 92.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at Felstead.
» He was educated at Trinity College, Cambridge.
» He worked as a Canon of St. Albans in St. Albans, Hertfordshire.
Richard married Margaret Jane Buxton, daughter of Thomas Fowell Buxton®®4° and Rachel Jane Gurney,*® on 26 Apr 1882. Margaret was born in 1859 in Leytonstone, London and died on 23 Nov 1903 in
West Ham, London at age 44. They had seven children: Arnold Claude, Donald Geoffrey, Richard Lawrence, Francis Brian, Janet Catherine, Margaret Richenda, and Arthur Roland.
6-Rev. Arnold Claude Pelly was born on 21 Feb 1883 and died in 1972 at age 89.

General Notes: He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1904 with a Bachelor of Arts (B.A.). He graduated from Trinity College, Cambridge
University, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire, England, in 1910 with a Master of Arts (M.A.). He was decorated with the award of Kaisar-i-Hind Gold Medal. He was the Principal at St. Andrew's College,
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Gorakpur, India. He was the Vicar between 1935 and 1960 at St. Mary's, Bury St. Edmunds, Suffolk, England. He held the office of Canon of St. Edmundsbury. He held the office of Canon of Ipswich in 1950.

Noted events in his life were:

» He was educated at Marlborough.

» He worked as a Canon of Ipswich.

Arnold married Constance Emily Stern, daughter of Rev. Henry Stern, on 25 Mar 1920. Constance died on 22 Mar 1976.

6-Donald Geoffrey Pelly>® was born on 3 Aug 1884 in Ware, Hertfordshire and died on 7 Dec 1961 at age 77.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was educated at Marlborough.

Donald married Joan King Uhthoff, daughter of John Caldwell Uhthoff, on 30 Jul 1913 in Steyning, West Sussex. Joan was born on 7 Apr 1885 in Hove, Brighton, East Sussex and died on 19 Jun 1964 in
New Forest, Hampshire at age 79.

6-Rev. Richard Lawrence Pelly was born on 18 Jul 1886 in Dorking, Surrey and died on 7 Apr 1976 at age 89.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Canon of Salisbury 1952 to 1976.

Richard married Rosa Salome Wordsworth, daughter of Rt. Rev. John Wordsworth and Mary Ann Frances Williams, in 1927. Rosa was born in Jul 1900 in Bishop's Cottage, West Lulworth, Dorset and
died in Apr 1995 in Harnham, Wiltshire at age 94. They had six children: Elizabeth Mary, Rosa Jane, Juliet Rachel, Robina Catherine, Richard Christopher Wordsworth, and Hugh John Wordsworth.

7-Elizabeth Mary Pelly
Elizabeth married Capt. Wyndham Mackay Jordan on 28 Jun 1952. Wyndham died on 27 Mar 1996. They had three children: Christopher Wyndham, Diana Salome, and Alison Faith.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Obstretician and Gynaecologist.

8-Christopher Wyndham Jordan
Christopher married Gillian Smith. They had two children: Zhala Anne and Anthony Christopher.

9-Zhala Anne Jordan
9-Anthony Christopher Jordan

8-Diana Salome Jordan
Diana married Timothy Benge-Abbott. They had two children: Daniel and Joel Matthew.

9-Daniel Benge-Abbott
9-Joel Matthew Benge-Abbott

8-Dr. Alison Faith Jordan
Alison married Dr. Timothy Clarke. They had two children: Fiona and Alexander.

9-Fiona Clarke
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9-Alexander Clarke
7-Rosa Jane Pelly

7-Juliet Rachel Pelly
Juliet married William Gibbins Webb, son of Thomas Gibbins Webb. They had two children: Rachel Sally and Rhoda Jane.

8-Rachel Sally Webb
Rachel married Matthew Bowns. They had one daughter: Unity.

9-Unity Bowns

8-Rhoda Jane Webb
Rhoda married Andrew Thomas Agerbak. They had three children: Elinor, Isabelle, and Alice.

9-Elinor Agerbak
9-Isabelle Agerbak
9-Alice Agerbak

7-Robina Catherine Pelly
Robina married Tymothy Sherwood Hattersley, son of Col. S. M. Hattersley. They had three children: Andrew Tym, William John, and Richard Wordsworth.

8-Dr. Andrew Tym Hattersley
Andrew married Catherine Laura Dick, daughter of Dr. Donald Hugh Dick. They had three children: Ruth Salome, Rosie Jane, and Mark Andrew.

9-Ruth Salome Hattersley

9-Rosie Jane Hattersley

9-Mark Andrew Hattersley
8-William John Hattersley

8-Dr. Richard Wordsworth Hattersley
Richard married Susan Herbert. They had two children: Emma and Katie.

9-Emma Hattersley
9-Katie Hattersley

7-Richard Christopher Wordsworth Pelly
Richard married Ruth Elinor Askey, daughter of Philip J. Askey. They had three children: Katherine Jane, Richard Hugh, and David John.

8-Katherine Jane Pelly

9-Josiah Pleydell-Bouverie
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9-Rufus Pleydell-Bouverie

9-Honor Phoebe C. Pleydell-Bouverie
8-Richard Hugh Pelly
8-David John Pelly

7-Dr. Hugh John Wordsworth Pelly
Hugh married Jane Mary Fergusson. They had five children: Tom Fergus, Matthew David, Adam, Christopher Hugh, and Claire Alexandra.

8-Tom Fergus Pelly
8-Matthew David Pelly
8-Adam Pelly
8-Christopher Hugh Pelly
8-Claire Alexandra Pelly

6-Francis Brian Pelly was born on 21 Apr 1889 and died in 1984 at age 95.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a General Secretary of the charity, Shaftesbury Homes and Arethusa.

Francis married Edith Beatrice Packe, daughter of Rev. William James Packe and Margaret Lucy Pym, on 3 Jun 1913. Edith was born on 16 Apr 1888 in Feering, Kelvedon, Essex and died in 1984 at age
96. They had three children: Michael Brian, Peter Richard, and Margaret Beatrice.

7-Michael Brian Pelly was born on 18 Jun 1915 and died in 1994 at age 79.
Michael married Mary Margaret Burn, daughter of Herbert Southerndern Burn. They had three children: Nicola Susan, Roger Brian, and David Arnold.

8-Nicola Susan Pelly
Nicola married Peter Charles Jeffery.

8-Roger Brian Pelly
Roger married Monica Giovanna Deorsola.
Roger next married Kiki Joyce McFarlane.

8-David Arnold Pelly

David married Deborah Susan Mattison. They had three children: Clara May, Henry Theodore, and Francis Michael.
9-Clara May Pelly
9-Henry Theodore Pelly
9-Francis Michael Pelly

7-Peter Richard Pelly
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Peter married Kathleen Irene Moorhouse. They had two children: Lynda Ann and Kathleen Georgina.

8-Lynda Ann Pelly
Lynda married Edward Macalister-Smith. They had two children: Sam Henry and Mathilda Rose.

9-Sam Henry Macalister-Smith
9-Mathilda Rose Macalister-Smith

8-Kathleen Georgina Pelly
Kathleen married E. V. Caldwell.

7-Margaret Beatrice Pelly was born on 25 Jan 1921 in Northwood, Middlesex and died in Jan 2001 at age 80.

Margaret married Theodore Sanger, son of Dr. Frederick Sanger and Cicely Crewdson,*°

They had two children: Melody and Katrina Scarlett.

on 2 Oct 1943 in Jordans. Theodore was born on 28 Aug 1917 in Rendcomb, Cirencester, Gloucestershire.

8-Melody Sanger
Melody married Peter Wright. They had three children: Megan Jenett, Alice Rosamund, and Madelene Rose.

9-Megan Jenett Wright
9-Alice Rosamund Wright
9-Madelene Rose Wright

8-Katrina Scarlett Sanger
Katrina married Michael Power. They had three children: Katherine, Molly, and Ellen.

9-Katherine Power
9-Molly Power

9-Ellen Power
Margaret next married Jovan Ulic.

6-Janet Catherine Pelly was born on 16 Aug 1890 and died on 2 Jan 1970 at age 79.

Janet married Capt. Edward Randall Cubitt, son of Edward George Cubitt and Christabel mary Burroughes, on 14 Oct 1913. Edward was born on 11 Oct 1884 in Norfolk Crescent, Hyde Park, London
and died on 12 Aug 1915 in Suvla Bay, Gallipoli, Turkey. Killed in action at age 30. They had three children: Thomas Randall, (No Given Name), and (No Given Name).

Noted events in his life were:
* He had a residence in Honing, Norfolk.

7-Thomas Randall Cubitt was born about 1914.

Thomas married Rachel Edith Capron, daughter of Lt. Col. George Theodore Herbert Capron and Hon. Edith Christian Hepburne-Scott. They had three children: Geoffrey Thomas, William
George, and Robin Patrick.

8-Geoffrey Thomas Cubitt
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8-William George Cubitt
8-Robin Patrick Cubitt
7-Cubitt
7-Cubitt
6-Margaret Richenda Pelly was born on 9 Dec 1892 and died on 16 Jan 1894 at age 1.
6-Capt. Arthur Roland Pelly was born on 14 Nov 1895 and died on 2 Jun 1966 at age 70.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was educated at Marlborough.
» He worked as a Bursar, Cheltenham College. 1938-61.

Arthur married Phyllis Elsie Henderson, daughter of Alexander Duff Henderson, on 21 Apr 1920. Phyllis died in 1974. They had four children: Mary Duff, John Gordon, Janet Elizabeth, and Derek
Roland.

7-Mary Duff Pelly was born on 25 Mar 1921 and died on 28 Jan 2015 at age 93.

Noted events in her life were:
 Death Notice: The Daily Telegraph, 31 Jan 2015.

Mary married George Thomas Bridges Stevens, son of Col. George Bridges Stevens, in 1945. George was born in 1922 and died in 2001 at age 79. They had three children: Charles Bridges, David
George, and Lucia Mary.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Solicitor.

8-Charles Bridges Stevens

Charles married Jeanette Macdonald Moore, daughter of Walter Moore. They had one son: Edward George Bridges.
9-Edward George Bridges Stevens

8-David George Stevens

David married Philippa May Steer, daughter of Charles Richard Pemberton Steer. They had two children: Hugh Richard and Alec Charles.
9-Hugh Richard Stevens
9-Alec Charles Stevens

8-Lucia Mary Stevens
Lucia married Philip Charles Dinkel, son of Prof. Michael Dinkel. They had three children: Charlotte Mary, Henry Michael George, and William Theodore John.

9-Charlotte Mary Dinkel
9-Henry Michael George Dinkel

9-William Theodore John Dinkel
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7-John Gordon Pelly was born on 27 Nov 1923 and died in 2004 at age 81.

John married Patricia Fuller, daughter of Maj. Hugh Clarence Fuller, on 18 Jan 1947. Patricia was born in 1924 and died on 5 Sep 2020 at age 96. They had three children: Priscilla Jane, Caroline
Anne, and John Henry Patrick Fuller.

8-Priscilla Jane Pelly
Priscilla married David Dalziel Mundell. They had four children: Sarah Richenda, Lucinda Clare, John Dalziel, and Andrew Hugh Dalziel.

9-Sarah Richenda Mundell
9-Lucinda Clare Mundell
9-John Dalziel Mundell
9-Andrew Hugh Dalziel Mundell

8-Caroline Anne Pelly
Caroline married Michael Eliot Howard, son of Eliot Charles Stewart Howard“® and Daphne Gladys Colville. They had three children: Joanna Clare, Nicholas Henry, and Harry Eliot.

9-Joanna Clare Howard
Joanna married Thomas Cross.

9-Nicholas Henry Howard
9-Lt. Harry Eliot Howard

8-John Henry Patrick Fuller Pelly
John married Susan Elizabeth Briggs. They had three children: Clare Elizabeth, Freddie John Fuller, and Serena Rose.

9-Clare Elizabeth Pelly
9-Freddie John Fuller Pelly
9-Serena Rose Pelly

7-Janet Elizabeth Pelly
Janet married Dr. Michael Lindsay Fenwick. They had three children: Alison Jane, Anne Richenda, and Juliet Nicola.

8-Alison Jane Fenwick
8-Anne Richenda Fenwick

8-Juliet Nicola Fenwick
Juliet married Derwin Nazarino. They had two children: Joel Fenwick and Sarah Nicola.

9-Joel Fenwick Nazarino
9-Sarah Nicola Nazarino

7-Derek Roland Pelly was born on 12 Jun 1929 and died on 14 Feb 2015 at age 85.
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Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as a Deputy Chairman, Barclays Bank.

» He worked as a Chairman Barclays International.

Derek married Susan Roberts, daughter of John Malcolm Roberts. They had three children: Rosemary Jane, Catherine Susan, and Samuel Roland.

8-Rosemary Jane Pelly
Rosemary married Mark C. Campbell. They had two children: Alexander Leo and Euan Henderson.

9-Alexander Leo Campbell
9-Euan Henderson Campbell

8-Catherine Susan Pelly
Catherine married Simon A W Osborn. They had three children: Cicley Mai Elsie, Anna Catherine Pelly, and George Ashby Arthur.

9-Cicley Mai Elsie Osborn
9-Anna Catherine Pelly Osborn
9-George Ashby Arthur Osborn

8-Samuel Roland Pelly
Richard next married Dora Isobel Carlile,>% daughter of Col. Sir Edward Hildred Carlile 1st Bt.5>° and Isabella Hanbury,>® in 1906. Dora was born on 9 Sep 1878 and died on 14 May 1915 at age 36.

Noted events in her life were:
» She was educated at The CIiff, Eastbourne in Eastbourne, East Sussex.

5-Edith Rachel Pelly®"28 died on 2 Nov 1925.

Edith married Rev. John Battersby-Harford,3:* son of Rev. Canon Thomas Dundas Harford-Battersby3":357 and Mary Forbes,®"*8 on 5 Oct 1887. John was born in 1857 in Keswick, Cumbria and died
on 7 Jan 1937 at age 80. They had four children: Henry Dundas, Mary Katharine, Winifred Maud, and John Victor.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Canon of Ripon Cathedral in Ripon, Yorkshire.
» He had a residence in The Crescent, Ripon, Yorkshire.

6-Henry Dundas Battersby-Harford®”-358 was born in 1888 and died in 1955 in India at age 67.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Teacher and Missionary in India.
Henry married Agnes Phipps.

6-Mary Katharine Battersby-Harford®"*® was born in 1890.
6-Winifred Maud Battersby-Harford

6-John Victor Battersby-Harford3":* was born in 1897.
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5-Alice Maud Pelly died on 10 Aug 1958.
Alice married Rev. Henry Theodore Cavell on 28 Sep 1897. Henry died in 1914.

5-Herbert Cecil Pelly was born on 27 Nov 1860 and died on 4 May 1935 at age 74.
Herbert married Mary Richenda Carter. They had four children: Gwynneth Mary, Humphrey Richard, Gilbert Cecil, and Kenneth Raymond.

6-Gwynneth Mary Pelly died on 18 Feb 1963.
Gwynneth married John Keble Guy. They had one daughter: Richenda Mary.

7-Richenda Mary Guy

6-Humphrey Richard Pelly was born on 31 Jul 1886 and died on 9 May 1955 at age 68.

Humphrey married Barbara Vidal Scrutton, daughter of Frederick Scrutton and Maude Cunliffe Vidal, on 8 Feb 1916 in Nutfield, Reigate, Surrey. Barbara was born on 1 Jan 1895 in Redhill, Reigate,
Surrey and died on 17 Jun 1965 at age 70. They had two children: Diana and Juliet.

7-Diana Pelly
Diana married Robert Arthur Byas Sheppard, son of Gerald Arthur Sheppard.

7-Juliet Pelly was born on 28 Jan 1920 and died on 12 Apr 2017 at age 97.
Juliet married Maj. George lan Bray on 8 Oct 1946. George was born in 1918 and died in 1985 at age 67. They had two children: Rose Elizabeth and Annabel Lucy.

8-Rose Elizabeth Bray
8-Annabel Lucy Bray

6-Capt. Gilbert Cecil Pelly was born on 26 Jul 1892 and died on 23 Feb 1961 at age 68.

Gilbert married Constance Margery Glazebrook, daughter of Frederick Edward De Tweenbrook Glazebrook, on 15 Jan 1921. Constance died on 16 Mar 1952. They had three children: David Cecil,
John Kenneth, and Peter Jeremy.

7-Lt. Cmdr. David Cecil Pelly
David married Angela Mary Gandell, daughter of Capt. Wildrid Pearse Gandell. They had five children: Richard Cecil, Nicholas John, Patrick David, Alexandra Helen, and Gilbert Ralph.

8-Cmdre. Richard Cecil Pelly

Richard married Fleur Veronica Proctor, daughter of John Desmond Proctor. They had three children: Cecile, Victoria Clare, and Jonathan Henry.
9-Cecile Pelly
9-Victoria Clare Pelly
9-Jonathan Henry Pelly

8-Nicholas John Pelly

Nicholas married Elaine Margaret Illingworth, daughter of George G. lllingworth. They had two children: Alistair George and Catriona Marie.
9-Alistair George Pelly

9-Catriona Marie Pelly
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Nicholas next married Sally Odell, daughter of Jack Odell. They had one son: James David.
9-James David Pelly

8-Patrick David Pelly
Patrick married Margaret Julie Gray, daughter of Scott Gray. They had two children: Ralph Jonathan and Christopher Scott.

9-Ralph Jonathan Pelly
9-Christopher Scott Pelly

8-Alexandra Helen Pelly
Alexandra married lan Mark Mclaren Pearson, son of Malcolm J. S. Pearson. They had two children: Hamish James Mclaren and Katherine Rose Mclaren.

9-Hamish James Mclaren Pearson
9-Katherine Rose Mclaren Pearson

8-Gilbert Ralph Pelly
Gilbert married Jane Anna Bagley, daughter of John Bagley.

7-John Kenneth Pelly
John married Joan Campbell Fraser, daughter of John Campbell Fraser. They had three children: David Fraser, Elizabeth Gail, and Brian Gordon.

8-David Fraser Pelly
David married Sara Lynn Nicholson, daughter of Alan Nicholson.
David next married Laurie McGinnis, daughter of Joseph McGinnis.

8-Elizabeth Gail Pelly
Elizabeth married John David Henry. They had three children: Kimberley Beth, Robyn Lynn, and Laura Louise.

9-Kimberley Beth Henry
9-Robyn Lynn Henry
9-Laura Louise Henry

8-Brian Gordon Pelly
Brian married Lynn Dorothy Pearson, daughter of Russell Henry Pearson. They had three children: Heather Kathryn, Kyle Russell John, and Coleen Leslie.

9-Heather Kathryn Pelly
9-Kyle Russell John Pelly
9-Coleen Leslie Pelly

7-Peter Jeremy Pelly
Peter married Dorothy Joan Hill, daughter of Capt. Thomas William Robert Hill. They had five children: Lindsay Madeleine, Anthony John, Elizabeth Joanna Clare, Nicolette Jane, and Ann
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Catherine.

8-Lindsay Madeleine Pelly
Lindsay married Peter St. L. Kyrke-Smith. They had four children: Laura Elizabeth, Hannah Sarah, Rebecca Lucy, and George Henry.

9-Laura Elizabeth Kyrke-Smith
9-Hannah Sarah Kyrke-Smith
9-Rebecca Lucy Kyrke-Smith
9-George Henry Kyrke-Smith

8-Anthony John Pelly
Anthony married Jane Chisholm Hair, daughter of Noel Hair. They had three children: Stephen Nicholas James, David Samuel Henry, and Joanna Elizabeth Chisholm.

9-Stephen Nicholas James Pelly
9-David Samuel Henry Pelly
9-Joanna Elizabeth Chisholm Pelly

8-Elizabeth Joanna Clare Pelly
Elizabeth married Anthony John Fielding. They had two children: Molly Alexandra and Leo Anthony.

9-Molly Alexandra Fielding

9-Leo Anthony Fielding
Elizabeth next married Adrian Portlock.

8-Nicolette Jane Pelly
Nicolette married Giovanni Jocolt. They had one son: Joshua.

9-Joshua Jocolt
8-Ann Catherine Pelly

6-Sir Kenneth Raymond Pelly was born on 9 Nov 1893 and died on 30 Sep 1973 at age 79.

Kenneth married Elspeth Norma Grant, daughter of Robert Campbell Grant and Beatrice Pelly, on 15 Oct 1919. Elspeth was born in 1891 and died in 1978 at age 87. They had two children: Ursula
Elspeth and Andrew Desmond.

7-Ursula Elspeth Pelly

Ursula married Robert George Malloch Brown, son of Robert W. Malloch Brown. They had one son: George Mark.

8-George Mark Brown
George married Patricia Anne Cronam. They had two children: Maddison Jane and label Anne.

9-Maddison Jane Brown
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9-label Anne Brown
7-Andrew Desmond Pelly was born on 28 Aug 1923 and died on 9 Feb 2015 at age 91.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with DFC.

Andrew married Nancye Jean Tatham, daughter of Lt. Col. Eric Tilyer Tatham and Hon. Lettice Theresa Digby. They had four children: Angela Pauline, lan Raymond, Christine Mary, and Fiona
Elizabeth.

8-Angela Pauline Pelly

Angela married Douglas F. Wentzel. They had three children: Karla Juli-Anne, Alexandra Korin, and Kristian Douglas Andrew.
9-Karla Juli-Anne Wentzel
9-Alexandra Korin Wentzel
9-Kristian Douglas Andrew Wentzel

8-lan Raymond Pelly
lan married Alana Murray.

8-Christine Mary Pelly
Christine married Col. Timothy Cross. They had three children: Alexander Leigh, Gemma Charlotte, and Stephen David.

9-Alexander Leigh Cross

9-Gemma Charlotte Cross

9-Stephen David Cross
8-Fiona Elizabeth Pelly

5-Alfred Digby Pelly3 was born on 7 Sep 1862 and died on 20 Jan 1940 at age 77.

Alfred married Evelyn Sophia Harford,® daughter of Rev. Canon Edward John Harford®®% and Gertrude Emma Bridges, on 5 Apr 1899. Evelyn died on 27 Mar 1970. They had two children: Violet
Evelyn and Richard Edward.

6-Violet Evelyn Pelly was born on 11 Jun 1900 and died in 1996 at age 96.
Violet married Henry De Ruvigny Marquess De Ruvigny in Feb 1923. Henry was born on 22 Oct 1896 and died on 10 May 1941 at age 44. They had one son: Michael Francis Wriothesley.

7-Michael Francis Wriothesley De Ruvigny Marquess de Ruvigny was born on 11 Feb 1927 and died on 11 Oct 2016 in Eastbourne, East Sussex at age 89.
Michael married Patricia Kirkpatrick Pile. They had two children: Rupert Francis James Henry and Rachel Anne.

8-Rupert Francis James Henry De Ruvigny
Rupert married Kumudini Nelun Ratnatunga. They had one daughter: Anabelle.

9-Anabelle De Ruvigny

8-Rachel Anne De Ruvigny
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Rachel married Philip Alan Rubery. They had two children: Georgina Rachel Eugenie and Henry Philip Michael Nicholas.
9-Georgina Rachel Eugenie Rubery
9-Henry Philip Michael Nicholas Rubery

6-Richard Edward Pelly was born on 29 May 1905 and died on 28 Nov 2002 at age 97.
Richard married Diana Marthe Desgrand Mitchell on 21 Apr 1941. Diana died in 1991. They had two children: Louise Sophia and Harriet Elizabeth Annabel.

7-Louise Sophia Pelly
Louise married someone. She had one daughter: Alexandra Caroline Diana.

8-Alexandra Caroline Diana Pelly
7-Harriet Elizabeth Annabel Pelly

5-Admiral Sir Henry Bertram Pelly was born on 9 Sep 1867 and died on 27 Dec 1942 at age 75.

Henry married Lilian Katherine Hawkshaw Vincent, daughter of Rev. Sir William Vincent 12th Bt. and Hester Clara Hawkshaw, on 14 Dec 1904. Lilian was born in 1883 and died on 20 Sep 1966 at age
83. They had four children: Esterel Alice Muriel, Douglas Charles Vincent, Andrea Evelyn, and Adrian Vincent.

6-Esterel Alice Muriel Pelly was born on 12 Jan 1906 and died on 30 Apr 1997 at age 91.
Esterel married Brig. Philip Reginald Antrobus, son of Sir Reginald Laurence Antrobus, on 7 Nov 1928. Philip died in 1986.

6-Douglas Charles Vincent Pelly was born on 24 Jun 1908 and died on 3 Oct 2001 at age 93.

Douglas married Catherine Lorraine Conran, daughter of Edwyn Conran. They had four children: Anne Lorraine, Gillian Esme, Catherine Elizabeth, and Douglas Edwayn Vincent.

7-Anne Lorraine Pelly

Anne married Lachlan Nicholas Ferrar Forbes, son of Lachlan Maxwell Forbes. They had two children: Lachlan Pelly Ferrar and Angus Maxwell.

8-Lachlan Pelly Ferrar Forbes

Lachlan married Melanie Knights. They had one son: Lachlan.
9-Lachlan Forbes

8-Angus Maxwell Forbes
Angus married Anne Kathrin Neumann.

7-Gillian Esme Pelly
Gillian married Timothy C. Caffell. They had one daughter: Anna Margaret Juliet.

8-Anna Margaret Juliet Caffell

7-Catherine Elizabeth Pelly
Catherine married Simon Maxwell. They had three children: Daniel, Oliver, and Dominic.

8-Daniel Maxwell
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8-Oliver Maxwell
8-Dominic Maxwell

7-Douglas Edwayn Vincent Pelly

Douglas married Susan Margaret Hards. They had three children: Jessica, Samantha, and Matthew James.
8-Jessica Pelly
8-Samantha Pelly
8-Matthew James Pelly

6-Andrea Evelyn Pelly was born on 8 Aug 1917 and died on 23 Apr 1991 at age 73.
Andrea married Rev. John Algernon Peyton Hoskyns, son of Oswald Peyton Latham Hoskyns and Evelyn Mary Blacklock.

6-Adrian Vincent Pelly
Adrian married Margaret Esterel Lambert.

5-Frederick Raymond Pelly was born on 11 Aug 1869 and died on 16 Oct 1940 at age 71.
Frederick married Beatrice Alice Radcliffe, daughter of Rev. Arthur Henry Delme Radcliffe.

4-Edmund Pelly® was born on 18 Jul 1816 and died on 19 May 1856 at age 39.
Edmund married Anna Rebecca Chapman,® daughter of Rev. Jonathan Chapman?®2° and Agatha Reynolds,?2°%3 on 5 Mar 1846. Anna was born about 1826 and died on 25 Dec 1907 about age 81.

4-Alfred Pelly was born in 1820 and died in 1820.
4-Col. Octavius Pelly was born on 7 May 1823 and died on 30 Apr 1904 at age 80.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as an Edinburgh Artillery Militia.
Octavius married Justina Fisher, daughter of Holwell Fisher, on 7 Jan 1847. Justina died on 18 May 1904.

4-Percy Leonard Pelly was born on 21 Mar 1826 and died on 4 Jun 1892 at age 66.

Percy married Eliza Ann Rigge, daughter of John Sanderson Rigge and Mary Ann Salthouse, on 2 Jun 1852. Eliza died on 17 Feb 1924. They had five children: Percy John, Leonard, Ada, Beatrice, and
Mabel.

5-Percy John Pelly was born on 19 May 1853 and died on 1 Feb 1932 at age 78.

Percy married Florence Marion Butler, daughter of Henry Butler, on 15 May 1879. Florence died on 10 Feb 1953. They had three children: Florence Irene Clare, Doris Eileen, and Iva Marion.
6-Florence Irene Clare Pelly was born on 25 Mar 1884 and died on 19 Jun 1954 at age 70.
6-Doris Eileen Pelly was born on 1 Aug 1890 and died on 7 Jul 1955 at age 64.

6-1va Marion Pelly was born on 14 Jan 1900 and died on 9 Nov 1985 at age 85.
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Noted events in her life were:
» She worked as a Chief Commandant ATS.

5-Maj. Leonard Pelly*® was born on 19 Sep 1856 and died on 22 Sep 1913 in Ashdon, Essex at age 57.

General Notes: Sun 29 Aug 1880 - Lizzie Leatham engaged to one Leonard Pelly

Tues 21 May 1907 — | went to London & took my Rachel Gurney to the publishers (Headley Bros), got a saddle at Whippy's for Edward to give Kit next birthday & caught a train for Cambridge & then on to
Bartlow (JGP: abt 15 miles S.E. of Cambridge) — | spent this night with Len & Lizzie Pelly at Waltons, a nice old place - | thoroughly enjoyed being with Lizzie very much, | feel so at home with the friends of
my youth, especially my first cousins —

On Thurs 23 May 1907 she took (me) through Saffron Walden & pointed me out the Gibsons houses &c & saw me off to Broxbourne (JGP: abt 7% m N.E. of Potters Bar) from Audley End — | met Nellie there
& we then went to High Lea to spend a night with Robert & Ellen Barclay - Again a very pleasant renewal of old acquaintance - & he showed me his old family things, his pedigree &c.

The Diaries of Sir Alfred Edward Pease Bt.

Noted events in his life were:

» He worked as an Essex Imperial Yeomanry.

Leonard married Elizabeth Leatham,*® daughter of Charles Albert Leatham*“%#! and Rachel Pease,**4%42 on 28 Oct 1880 in All Saints', Woodford, Essex. Elizabeth was born on 9 May 1855 in Gunnergate
Hall, Marton, Middlesbrough, Yorkshire and died on 23 May 1930 in Bletchley, Buckinghamshire at age 75. They had two children: Christabel and Eric Percy Leonard.

Marriage Notes: 28 Oct 1880, Thurs: Lizzie Leatham's wedding day, a cold wet morning. To All Saints Church (Mr Leonard Pelly's) at Woodford with Alfred & Emma Richardson. The affair went off well;
Bridesmaids all in blue & buff and half in white & gold. A distinguished company - back to Forest House, about 70 at breakfast. The Bride bolted when | proposed her health; attended to Settlement with Percy
John Pelly, gave it J. G. Barclay to get W,.L. Barclay 's signature, a walk and chat in the damp & rain with Arthur after ricing the Happy Pair. Dinner and then a Mr Durkin recited capitally, Dickens, Hood & his
own; Minnie came down a while, but she could not stand it and left for her room again - all tired and to bed at 11 o'clock.

The (unpublished) Diaries of Sir Joseph Whitwell Pease Bt.

General Notes: 29 Aug 1880, Sun: A beautiful day to Crathie Church, Minnie with us, Queen not there. A pleasant walk to the Shepherd's huts; read the Life of Bunyan to the servants. Heard of Lizzie
Leatham's engagement to Leonard Pelly.
The (unpublished) Diaries of Sir Joseph Whitwell Pease Bt.

6-Christabel Pelly*® was born on 4 Sep 1881 in Ongar, Essex and died on 29 Apr 1952 in Hawkhurst, Kent at age 70.
Christabel married Leigh Udall Kent on 27 Apr 1909. Leigh died in 1919. They had one son: Wilfrid Robin Leigh.

7-Wilfrid Robin Leigh Kent was born in 1910.
Christabel next married S/Ldr. William Herbert Mackenzie in 1920. The marriage ended in divorce. William was born in 1880 in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. They had one daughter: Esme Jane.

Noted events in their marriage were:
» They were divorced Divorce in 1929.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with AFC.

7-Esme Jane Mackenzie
Christabel next married Arthur Leslie Moore.

6-Eric Percy Leonard Pelly was born on 26 Nov 1894 in Ashdon, Essex and died on 14 Feb 1978 at age 83.

General Notes: Sat 24 May 1930 — Empire Day — our flag up - I had a wire from Eric Pelly saying his mother Lizzie Pelly died yesterday — | have been her Trustee for more than 50 years; of all
that family of girls, only Mary Butler survives — so the playmates of my childhood & my generation passes away — The Diaries of Sir Alfred Edward Pease Bt.

Eric married Helen Marjorie Wade, daughter of Edmund Richmond Wade and Mary L. Hill. They had one daughter: Rosamund Ann.

7-Rosamund Ann Pelly
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Descendants of John Pelly

Rosamund married Maj. Elliott Merriam Viney, son of Col. Oscar Vaughan Viney and Edith Annie Merriam, on 3 Jun 1950 in Pennsylvania. Elliott was born in 1913. They had two children: Diana
Susan and Amanda Louise.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with DSO MBE TD FSA.
» He worked as a High Sheriff of Buckinghamshire in 1964.

8-Diana Susan Viney
Diana married Hugh Scrimgeour, son of Robin Scrimgeour. They had three children: Daniel, Alexander, and Sophie Rebecca.

9-Daniel Scrimgeour
9-Alexander Scrimgeour
9-Sophie Rebecca Scrimgeour

8-Amanda Louise Viney
Amanda married Tom Deakin. They had two children: Jack Elliott and Charley.

9-Jack Elliott Deakin

9-Charley Deakin
Rosamund next married Christopher Patrick Grant Chavasse in 2004. Christopher was born in 1928, died on 21 Apr 2013 at age 85, and was buried on 2 May 2013.

5-Ada Pelly died on 17 May 1937.
Ada married Rev. Honyel Gough Rosedale on 27 Aug 1890. Honyel died on 14 Jan 1928.

Noted events in his life were:
* He was educated at DD FSA.
» He worked as a Rector of Copford, Essex.

5-Beatrice Pelly was born in 1864 and died on 5 Oct 1946 at age 82.
Beatrice married Robert Campbell Grant on 26 Jun 1890. Robert died on 18 Feb 1931. They had one daughter: Elspeth Norma.

6-Elspeth Norma Grant was born in 1891 and died in 1978 at age 87.
7-Ursula Elspeth Pelly
8-George Mark Brown
9-Maddison Jane Brown
9-label Anne Brown

7-Andrew Desmond Pelly was born on 28 Aug 1923 and died on 9 Feb 2015 at age 91.
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Descendants of John Pelly

Noted events in his life were:
* He was awarded with DFC.

8-Angela Pauline Pelly
9-Karla Juli-Anne Wentzel
9-Alexandra Korin Wentzel
9-Kristian Douglas Andrew Wentzel
8-lan Raymond Pelly
8-Christine Mary Pelly
9-Alexander Leigh Cross
9-Gemma Charlotte Cross
9-Stephen David Cross
8-Fiona Elizabeth Pelly

5-Mabel Pelly

3-William Pelly was born on 17 Jun 1788 and died in 1829 at age 41.
William married Lucy Gunston. They had one son: Augustus.

4-Augustus Pelly was born on 28 Jan 1821 in Pernambuco, Brazil and died on 17 May 1907 in London at age 86.

Augustus married Anne Rose Clouston on 28 Aug 1849 in Canada. Anne was born on 29 May 1831 in Papa Westray, Orkney, Scotland and died in 1874 in Birkenhead, Cheshire at age 43. They had one daughter:

Rose Stewart Lindsay.

5-Rose Stewart Lindsay Pelly was born in 1859 in Canada and died on 2 Sep 1929 in Llanarmon, Wales at age 70.
Rose married Richard George Gatehouse in 1885 in Birkenhead, Cheshire. Richard was born in 1860 in Cheshire and died on 16 Oct 1939 at age 79. They had two children: Leslie Russell Alcock and

Rosalind.

6-Leslie Russell Alcock Gatehouse was born in 1886 and died on 3 Oct 1926 in Carlisle, Cumbria at age 40.

6-Rosalind Gatehouse was born on 28 Mar 1892 in Birkenhead, Cheshire and died on 9 Sep 1957 at age 65.

7-Rosemary Oenone Pelly
8-John Pelly Nelmes
9-Flora Mary Nelmes
9-Emma Rosemary Nelmes

9-Elizabeth Margaret Nelmes
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Descendants of John Pelly

8-Godfrey Edward Nelmes
9-Oliver Noel Ernest Nelmes
9-Luke Godfrey Nicholas Nelmes
8-Rosalind Jane Nelmes
9-Rosanna Emily Margaret Bishop
9-Thomas Richard Chilton Bishop
9-Victoria Great Oenone Jane Bishop
8-Edmund Gordon Nelmes
7-John Stewart Gatehouse Pelly®® was born on 10 Dec 1930 in Devonport and died on 10 Apr 2004 in Sudbury, Suffolk at age 73.
8-Sarah Elizabeth Pelly was born in 1963 and died in 1963.
8-Jennifer Oenone Pelly
8-Catherine Alison Pelly
8-Rosemary Helen Pelly
8-1sobel Serena Pelly

3-Charles Pelly was born on 13 Sep 1779 and died on 16 Nov 1811 at age 32.
Charles married Mary Bullock.

3-Rev. Francis Pelly was born on 24 Dec 1780 and died on 3 Jul 1844 at age 63.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Rector of Siston, Gloucestershire.
Francis married Mary Anne Richards on 16 Feb 1813. Mary died on 5 Nov 1857. They had one son: Justinian.

4-Justinian Pelly was born on 20 Apr 1818 and died on 17 Feb 1893 at age 74.
Justinian married Fanny Ingleby. They had one son: Bernard.

5-Bernard Pelly was born on 5 Jun 1860 in Little Hallingbury, Essex and died on 10 Aug 1938 in Seattle, King County, Washington, USA at age 78.

Bernard married Elizabeth Montgomery Minor, daughter of Dr. Thomas Taylor Minor and Sarah Montgomery, on 2 Jan 1900 in Trinity Episcopal Church, Seattle, Washington, USA. Elizabeth was born on
14 May 1874 in Port Townsend, Washington, USA and died on 24 Nov 1958 at age 84. They had four children: Bernard Berenger, Thomas Minor, Lancelot Ingleby, and Francis Justinian.

6-Bernard Berenger Pelly was born on 19 May 1901 in Seattle, King County, Washington, USA and died on 14 Nov 1986 in Seattle, King County, Washington, USA at age 85.
Bernard married Elizabeth Nute. Elizabeth was born on 28 Jun 1909 and died on 23 Aug 1973 at age 64. They had two children: Bernard Berenger and Peter Ingleby.

7-Bernard Berenger Pelly was born in 1931 and died in 2011 at age 80.
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Descendants of John Pelly

7-Peter Ingleby Pelly was born in 1939 and died in 1941 at age 2.

6-Thomas Minor Pelly was born on 22 Aug 1902 in Seattle, King County, Washington, USA and died on 21 Nov 1973 in California, USA at age 71.
Thomas married Mary Virginia Taylor. They had two children: Thomas Minor and Marion Elizabeth.

7-Thomas Minor Pelly
7-Marion Elizabeth Pelly
6-Lancelot Ingleby Pelly was born on 22 Jun 1906 in Seattle, King County, Washington, USA and died on 12 Nov 1928 at age 22.

6-Francis Justinian Pelly was born on 31 Mar 1913 and died on 25 Aug 2009 at age 96.

Francis married Nancy Bertha Lane on 26 Jun 1942. Nancy was born on 3 Jan 1914 and died on 6 Oct 2012 in Horizon House, Seattle, Washington, USA at age 98. They had two children: Wendy Frances
and Nancy Anne.

7-Wendy Frances Pelly
Wendy married Lewis McNay.
Wendy next married Michael Flannery.

7-Nancy Anne Pelly
Nancy married Bryan Pye.

2-Rev. John Pelly was born on 27 Oct 1754 and died on 17 Nov 1809 at age 55.
John married Eugenia Roberts. Eugenia died on 8 Feb 1831 in (1839 Also Given). They had one son: John Hinde.

3-John Hinde Pelly® was born on 19 May 1786 and died on 17 Mar 1852 at age 65.
John married Elizabeth Lewis.® Elizabeth was born in 1782 and died on 11 Sep 1852 at age 70. They had three children: Henry Joseph, Saville Marriott, and Lewis.

4-Gen. Henry Joseph Pelly was born on 9 Jan 1818 and died in 1891 at age 73.
Henry married Deborah Elizabeth Morris, daughter of John Morris.

4-Dr. Saville Marriott Pelly was born on 28 Mar 1818 and died on 3 Apr 1895 in Woodstock Villa, Burnt Ash Hill, Lee, Kent at age 77.

Noted events in his life were:

» He was awarded with CB FRCS.

» He worked as a Surgeon-General.

Saville married Jane Billing Morris, daughter of John Morris. They had one son: Stanley Augustus.

5-Rev. Stanley Augustus Pelly was born in 1853.

Noted events in his life were:
» He worked as a Vicar of Swanicke in Swanicke, Alfreton, Derbyshire.
Stanley married Louisa Ross. They had two children: Richard Stanley and Evelyn.

6-Rev. Richard Stanley Pelly was born on 10 Mar 1881 and died on 9 May 1932 at age 51.
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Descendants of John Pelly

Richard married Dorothy Jessie Piper Parmenter in 1917. Dorothy died in 1934. They had three children: Desmond Aubrey Stanley, Anthony Edward, and Michael Richard Parmenter.

7-Desmond Aubrey Stanley Pelly was born on 3 Mar 1919 and died on 9 Dec 1993 at age 74.
Desmond married Patricia Anne de Pass, daughter of Col. Guy de Pass. They had four children: Carolyn Ann, Richard Guy Stanley, John Marriott, and Michael Desmond Eliot.

8-Carolyn Ann Pelly
Carolyn married Thomas Alexander Fortescue Frost. They had three children: Alexander Fortescue, William, and Edward.

9-Alexander Fortescue Frost
9-William Frost
9-Edward Frost

8-Richard Guy Stanley Pelly
Richard married Elizabeth Wigram Lloyd, daughter of Martin Lloyd and Kathleen Rosslyn Robertson. They had two children: Sarah Elizabeth and James Aubrey Stanley.

9-Sarah Elizabeth Pelly
Sarah married Joah Robert Madden.

9-James Aubrey Stanley Pelly

8-John Marriott Pelly
John married Caroline Mary Griffith. They had two children: Alice Mary and Celia Anne.

9-Alice Mary Pelly
9-Celia Anne Pelly

8-Dr. Michael Desmond Eliot Pelly
Michael married Elizabeth Noble.

7-Anthony Edward Pelly

7-Michael Richard Parmenter Pelly was born on 27 May 1925 and died on 14 Jul 1992 at age 67.
Michael married Angela Mary Peate on 14 Feb 1967. Angela was born in 1927 and died on 28 Jul 2019 at age 92. They had one daughter: Rose.

8-Rose Pelly

6-Evelyn Pelly was born on 19 Apr 1883 and died on 28 Nov 1977 at age 94.
Stanley next married Agnes Henrietta Colquhoun, daughter of Rev. John Erskine Campbell Colquhoun and Emily Agnes Bevan.

4-Gen. Sir Lewis Pelly® was born on 14 Nov 1825 in Hyde House, Minchinhampton, Gloucestershire and died on 22 Apr 1892 in Rosemullion, Falmouth, Cornwall at age 66.

Noted events in his life were:
» He was awarded with KCB KCSI.
» He was educated at Rugby.
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Descendants of John Pelly

» He worked as an officer of the East India Company.
Lewis married Amy Henrietta Lowder in 1878. Amy was born in 1847 in Calne, Wiltshire.
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